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Instem plc
HIGHLIGHTS

Financial Highlights

* Revenues increased 18% to £13 4m (2013 £11 4m)
o Recurnng revenues mcreased to £0 2m (2013 £8 2m), representing 69% of total revenues
o Sofiware as a Service {SaaS) revenues ncreased 20% to £1 8m (2013 £1 Sm}

*  Adjusted EBITDA* for the year amounted to £1 9m (2013 £1 8m)

»  (Cash balance as at 31 December 2014 of £1 7m (2013 £2 1m)
o After £0 3m of deferred acquusition consideration pard n 2014

*  Adjusted earmings per share** of 8 4p (2013 8 6p)

*Earmings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, share based payment charges and non-recurring
costs

**After adjusting for the effect of foreign currency exchange on the revaluation of inter-company balances
included in finance income/{costs), non-recurring wtems and amortisation of intangibles on acquisitions Profit
15 adusted in this way to provide a clearer measure of underlying operating performance

Operationzl Highlights

e Sigmficant WIL Research contracts won m H1 2014 and H2 2014, with the latter valued at over $7m
over four years

s  Mulh-year National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences (“NIEHS”) contract extended wath
additional sites and users

e  Further client wins extended our market leading position in China

¢ US Food & Drug Administration mandating drug submissions using SEND (Standard for the Exchange
of Non-Climical Data)
Multiple orders for submit™, Instem’s solution implementing SEND

+  Both 2013 acquisitions successfully integrated

Phil Reason, CEO of Instem plc, commented:

“In contrast to 2013, when the preclimcal and early clinical market was generally reluctant to commit to any
significant imvestment decisions, 2014 was a penod when many of our customers revisited thewr near-term
ambitions and began to evaluate thewrr ongomg nformation management requurements This resulted in a very
strong second half performance

“As we enter the cwrent financial year, our order backlog 1s at record levels, underpmnmg our 2015
expectations In addinon, December’s deciston by the FDA to mandate the future use of SEND was a key event
for which Instem has been planming and we have already begun to see increasing wnterest and orders for the
Group’s SEND compliant products across a range of customers

“Total research and development pipehnes wnthm the pharma sector have increased by almost 9% to
approximately 12,300 drug candidates dunng 2014, which makes us particularly positive about our outlook for
the future as we can now see sustainable growth across our target markets ”

PRoams

P J Reason
Chuef Executive
21 Apnl 2015




Instem plc
CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

As previously stated, our near term ambitions for the period were to consohdate our market position and fully
integrate the recent acqusiions I am pleased to report both of these ambitions were completed successfully
during the year

From a market perspective, Instem continues to be the leading suppler of mnformation solutons to the
preclmical and early chmcal market place Furthermore, this market 1s experiencing a strong recovery as global
pharmaceutical orgamsations mvest significant financial and human resources to accelerate thewr own drug
development and acquire third party candidates for lugh value and high growth markets We believe that Instem
continues to be well placed to benefit from increased focus on the tools and skills required to increase the capital
efficiency of these global pharmaceutical and biotechnology compames and their partners

During the year, we aclueved strong organic growth through expansion contracts with existng customers,
winning contracts with new customers and successfully mtegrating the acquisitions of Instem Chmecal Holdings
Limited and Perceptive Instmments Lmuted, which both contributed a full-year of trading, to record a pertod of
strong revenue growth of 18%

From an organic growth point of view, we were particularly pleased to extend the contract with WIL Research
for our Provantis and Submat solutions for their toxicology systems and processes worldwide. We also extended
our Provantis contract with the National Institute of Environmental Health Sciences (“NIEHS”), which 18 part of
the US National Institute of Health

With regard to new clients, we won eight new contracts for our Submit suate dunng the penod, expanded our
mternational revenues across Asia-Pacific with two new contracts with the National Shanghai Centre for Drug
Safety Evaluation and Research, 2 leading Chinese Contract Research Crgamsation (*CRO™) and a ouilt-year
contract with a leading multi-national organisation to support its standards for the exchange of non-clinical data

Dunng the penod, the Company was pleased to confirm that the imtal earn out criteria for the Instem Climical
acquisiion. were successfully achieved, tnggenng the first two payments to the vendors. Furthermore, the
recently integrated Perceptive Instruments acquisition performed well durng the period making a sohd
contribution to revenue and profits

We have successfully diversified our revenue base, further reducing the Group’s dependence on particular
products, market sectors or geographies whilst contumumng to invest in the capabtlities of our product portfolio
and staff Contract renewal rates remained high through the year and we ended 2014 wath a record backlog of
orders Furthermore, in December 2014 SEND received final mandatory guidance from the FDA, setting the
dates by whuch all regulatory submissions must comply with the standard, ths is a key development 1n our
market that should prowvide sigmficant impetus for our products

We therefore look forward to the future with confidence and beheve Instem will become an increasingly
valuable player m the field of supporting drug development through the application of leading information
technology solutons

Finally, I would like to take this opportumty to thank all our staff, customers and partners for their ongomng
support.

D Gare
Chairman
21 April 2015
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Instem plc
STRATEGIC REPORT

The year 1n review represents a period of sigmficant progress for the Group m terms of expanding the product
portfohio and diversifying the revenue base by product and temtory

Instem continues to be a leadmg supplier to the world's largest life scrence orgamisations and laboratories,
delivening solutions to streamlme R&D processes, resulung in increased chent efficiency and shorter product
development imelines Followang a subdued first half of the year, the global pharmaceutical industry 1n general,
and the Contract Research Orgamsations {CROs) that service 1t in particular, witnessed a strong recovery in the
second half of the year.

Total Group revenue for 2014 increased approximately 18% over the previous vear as a combination of 11%
orgamc growth and 7% contribution from the Perceptive Instruments acquisition, which only contributed one
month of revenue in 2013

As a result of the improving market and our mcreasing industry presence, new business opportumties improved
signsficantly n both size and quality duning the year and we converted the majonity of our new business using
our SaaS or Hosted delivery models, helping reduce the medmm-term cost of ownership for clients and the cost
of client support for Instem. The SaaS model also mmproves revenue visibility and quality of earmngs for the
Group SaaS revenue for the year mcreased 20%.

Profitability of the Group also increased during the year, with Adjusted Earmings before Interest, Tax,
Depreciation and Amortisation increasmg 5% despite sigmficant investment 1 our products and people during
the penod

Operational Review

To capitahse on our increased product portfolio and market presence we added to our Sales, Marketing and
Implementation Services teams dunng the year and made sigmficant progress in scaling up our Pune, India
operation, from where we can flexibly and cost effectively provide a range of software development, testing,
client support and back-office implementation services. To support our growth m Incha and elsewhere m the
Asia-Pacific we extended our ISO2001 2008 accreditation to cover both our Pune and Shanghai offices

Product Portfolio

With major version upgrades for all current Provantis and AT PHADAS clents, the increased deployment of our
Submit smte and the general migranon to our Software-as-a-Service and Hosted deployment models, we also
invested further in the Company’s data centre infrastructure across both the US and China

PreClinical — Provantis® and Perceptive Instruments

The Group's pre-climcal software sutte, Provantis, advanced its market leading position mn the year with
significant contracts with the Nationa! Institute of Environmental Health Sciences (“NIEHS”) and WIL
Research, a leading CRO, 1n both the first and second half of the year

The addinon of 100 addittonal Provantis users and two additional sites for NIEHS 1llustrated the compelling
value proposiion of the Group’s SaaS delivery model and confirms it remamns the leadmg solution m the
marketplace today Importantly, this provides further confidence that this particular customer will generate
revenue at the upper end of the forecast US$6 2m to USET 6m range over the ten-year peniod envisaged when
the contract was minhally signed m 2013 The contracts signed with WIL Research were also representative of
our leading position 1n the CRO sector In particular, the contract signed 1n the second half of the year was
worth US$7 Om over four years, which is sigmificantiy larger than the average contract size for the Group

Perceptive Instruments, acquired i November 2013 to enhance the Group’s study workflow and automation
solutrons, won over 30 new clients w the first full year post acqusition, recorded 1ts first sale of 1ts new Cyto
Study Manager Solution, which was also launched m the year, and achieved s first sale into Japan of 1ts AMES
Study Manager product.

Page 4|




Instem plc
STRATEGIC REPORT

Electronic Regulatory Submissions — submif{™

Importantly, the Group extended its market leading posthon m the SEND market with 1ts propnetary Submit
solution suite Dunng the year, the Group hired experienced staff members from Roche, AstraZeneca and Eh
Lilly to accelerate product development and penetration mn thus exciting space, resulting in the release of
mmportant updates and additional software modules 1n the Submut swite for managing and viewing SEND data
sets

The Group won eight new Submit clients dunng the year, including some of the world’s largest pharmaceutical
compantes and CROs and now has the majonty of those enterpnses instrumental in the development of the
SEND protocol over the past 10 years, representing a significant endorsement of the Group's solutton This
important market 18 set to receive a sigmficant boost following the 1ssue of defimtive guidance by the FDA m
December 2014 as to the deadline when all regulatory submissions must be made using SEND

Early Clinical - ALPHADAS™

Following strong order mtake n 2013, Instem Climcal focused considerzble attention on a senes of related
updates to our ALPHADAS product swite and the corresponding chent implementations With a growing chient
list and many more parallel implementation projects, we took the opportimty to strengthen the umplementation
and support team.

The Group implemented several important ALPHADAS projects duning the year and continues to cycle clients
onto the latest version of the product swmte New business across Europe was particularly strong for
ALPHADAS, whilst several opportumties m North Amenca were delayed as early phase chimcal CROs
continued to restructure and realign their resource requirements.

Instem Scientific

Instem Scientific has always had a blend of product sales for big data informatics and related consulting services
in the information sciences While recurring product support revenue from existing clients has been robust, the
ongoing restructunng in big pharma has steadily reduced therr mternal capabilities in this area, reducing demand
for additional product licenses However, consistent with their strategic move to an outsourcing model, there
was growmg chent mterest m our consulting expertise and particularly our capability to leverage our
sophisticated technology swte Consequently, we have repositioned our approach to address this emerging
opportunity We expect to see the benefits of ttus change in the coming years, as demand for consulting
expertise 18 usually a lead indicator for increasmg demand for other products and services across tins market
sector

Market Overview

Citeline®, which claims to have the world's most comprehensive source of real-time R&D intelligence for the
pharmaceutical mdustry, recently reported thai the global drug pipeline had increased by 8.8% m the past year,
alongside a 27% increase in market launches of new active substances Supported by high capital inflows, the
Inggest growth segment was small to mud-tier pharma, with a year-on-year mcrease of more than 10% 1n the
mumber of compames with an active drug development portfolio

Followng the strong growth recorded n 2013, the growth m 2014 represents the largest annual drug pipeline
nse on record, in absolute terms, and there 1s further evidence that the global pharmaceutical market s now
moving resources from late stage clinical development mnto early compound development work 1a order to refill
the pipelne of preclimcal candidates

These drug development activities require specialist services and technologies with a particular focus on IT
solutions which enable orgamisations to improve cost efficiencies and ensure they are able to meet the ever
tncreasmg regulatory demands of the mdustry The regulatory bodies’ preference for the electronic capture,
storage and transfer of data for new drug subrmissions continues to grow and pharmaceutical orgamisations are
seelang tools that can help them to 1dentify swtable drug candidates from vast volumes of listoric data, m
addition to managing therr comphance nsk with the authorities

Page 5]
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Instem pic
STRATEGIC REPORT

PreClinical market

Asustamed recovery m study volumes i1s currently being reported by PreClimcal CROs as pharmaceutical
orgamsations are currently seeking to replemsh early stage pipelines after five years focused predomemately on
late stage clinical candrdates This 15 supported by the recent Citeline® report, which shows the PreClinical drug
pipeline mcreased by 10 5% 1n the last year, with CROs accounting for the majonty of the increase

With increased prechmcal study volume helpmg to create opportunties with the pharma sponsors, PreChmical
CROs continue to report strong demand in North Amenca, but a contimuation 1n suppressed demand from
Europe and Japan Numerous CROs have been adding or locking to add additional capacity

Early Stage Clinical market

The recent market study from Citeline® reported a 4 9% increase in the Early Stage Chinucal pipeline, less than
m 2013, and this supports anecdotal evidence that the Early Stage Chmcal market 1s growing less consistently,
with some CROs reporting marked mcreases in study volume and others still with capacity to spare

The early stage cliical market 15 immediately downstream of prechnical and there may therefore be a delay
before the mcreased preclinical investment dehivers an improved flow of drug candidates to the chimc The
restructuning of the early phase clinical CRO market, as experienced 1n recent years, 15 expected to continue
with CRO performance quite variable

Nevertheless opportunities exist within the early stage chnical market for the deployment of Instem's software
solutions These opportumties are resuling from an increasmg recogmtion of the need to control data quality
and integnty and because levels of automation withun the early stage environment remain low

Government and Academec Research

Funding for Government/Academic nstitutions undertakang later stages of life sciences research in North
America, Chma and Europe continues to grow to cover gaps that are not sufficiently attractive to commercial
enterprises This enables them to mvest in both study automation solutions and in mnovattve approaches to the
process of R&D using novel scientific, informatcs and ig data approaches

Outlook

In contrast to 2013, when the preclinical and early climcal market was generally reluctant to commuit to any
sigmificant investment decisions, 2014 was a peniod when many of our customers revisited their near-term
ambitions and began to evaluate thewr ongoimng information management requirements This resulted m a very
strong second half performance.

As we enter the current financial year, our order backlog 1s at record levels, underpinming our 2015 expectatons
In addition, December’s decision by the FDA to mandate the future use of SEND was a key event for which
Instem has been planning and we have already begun to see increasmg mterest and orders for the Group’s
SEND comphant products across a range of customers

Total research and development pipelines within the pharma sector have increased by almost 9% to
approximately 12,300 drug candidates during 2014, which makes us particularly positive about our outlook for
the future as we can now see sustainable growth across cur target markets

PRecnon

P J Reason
Chief Executive
21Apnl 2015
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Instem plc
FINANCIAL REVIEW

Instemn’s revenue model consists of perpetual hicense income with annual support contracts, professional
services fees and SaaS subscriptions Total revenue for the twelve months to 31 December 2014 1ncreased 18%
to £13 4m compared to the same period last year From a ternitory perspective, demand for our products and
services from customers 1 North America continued to mcrease whilst new business in Furope was more
muted, reflecting the lower levels of pharmaceutical R&D activity i the region

During the period, organic revenue imncreased 11% wiath the remamnmg 7% revenue growth from a full-year
contribution of the Perceptive Instruments acquisition The organic revenue growth was driven primanly from
the mcreased sales of our Submut suite with total revenue benefiting from a full year contribution from the
Perceptive Instruments acquisithion, which made neghgible revenue contribution 1z 2013

Total recurning revenue, from support contracts and Saa$ based subscnptions, increased 12% dunag the year to
£9 2m, now representing 69% total revenue and 79% of total operating expenses of the Group SaaS based
revenue, which provides enhanced total returns and increased revenue visibility, inereased 20% to £1 8m.

Adjusted Eamnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation, Amortisation and share based payments, increased 5% to
£1.9m Development costs mcurred dunng the period were £1 3m of which £0 3m was capitalised The non-
recammag costs mcluded a charge of £0 06m relating to a trade dispute, net of msurance proceeds, and £0 07m of
professional fees assocrated wath the Perceptive Instruments acquisthon m 2013

Profit before tax decreased by £0 5m to £0.2m due to increased amortisation of mtangibles, mcreased FRS17
pension charge and net foreign exchange losses In 2013 the acquired subsidianes coninbuted £0 6m. After
consohdation and IFRS adjustments, the core business before acquisitions reported a post-tax loss in 2013 of
£0 05m due pnmanly to a delay m one particularly sigmficant perpetual hicence and non-recurring costs of
£02m

The Group claimed and recerved research and development tax credits during the year of £0.1m (2013. £0 05m)

Cash generated from operating activittes was £0 5m (2013 £2 Om) impacted by the late WIL contract win n
December 2014, the cash recerpt from which 1s due 1n 2015, and late receipt of three annual fee renewals The
Group had cash reserves of £1 7m as at 31 December 2014, compared with £2 1m as at 31 December 2013, after
making two deferred constderation cash payments for the Instem Chimcal acqusition during the year amounting
to £0 3m In addition, cash consideration amounting to £0 3m was taken 1n the form of a Loan Note mcluded
within current financial hiabilities at the year-end, which was paid 1n January 2015

There was an mcrease n the funding deficit on the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme duning the penod
calculated 1 accordance wath the provisions of IAS19 that amounted to £0 5m, net of deferred tax (2013

£0 6m), wiuch has been recogmsed 1n Other Comprehensive Expense This was a non-cash charge in the period
and arose pnmanly as a result of forecast lower gilt yields, partially offset by higher expected returns on assets

As part of the scheme’s tnenmal actuanal valuation as at 5 Apni 2011, the Group agreed a schedule of
payments to the scheme with the trustees and the Pensions Regulator that 1s designed to elimmate the funding
deficit over an eight year penod The scheme’s actuanal valuation as at § Apnl 2014 1s currently 1n process and
will be reported in the six month results to 30 June 2015 The defined benefit pension scheme has remaned
closed to new members since 2000 and to future accrual smee 2008

The increase m the merger reserve of £0 6m was due to the premmm ansing from the 1ssue of shares as part of
the deferred consideration payment relating to the Instem Chnical acquisition.

In line with previous periods, and our current policy of retaimng cash within the business to capitalise on the
available growth opporturuties, the Board has not recommended the payment of a dividend

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The directors comsider that the global pharmaceutical market 1s likely to contnue to provide growth
opporturuties for the business The combnation of the ugh level of annual support renewals and low levels of
customer attntion prowvides revenue wvisibility to underpmn the Group strategy on product and market
development.

P_;-ge 7]




Instem plc
FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group seeks to mitigate exposure to all forms of risk through a combination of regular performance review
and a comprehensive msurance programme

The global nature of the market means that the Group 1s exposed to currency nsk as a consequence of a
sigmificant proportion of 1ts revenue being earned m US Dollars, some of which 1s mingated by operating costs
wmcurred by tts US operation. The Group contmually assesses the most appropriate approach to managing its
currency exposure 1n line with the overall goal of achieving predictable earnings growth

I\B_ja‘stc}f&q

N J Goldsmith
Chief Financial Officer
21 Apnl 2015

Page 8|

L




Instem plc
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Corporate Governance Statement

Given the size of the Group the Board has decided to apply the Corporate Governance Code for Small and Mad-
Size Quoted Companies as 1t seeks to mantain a strong governance ethos thronghout the Group The Board
recognises uts overall responsibility for the Group’s systems of internal control and for momtonng their
effectiveness

The mam features of the Group’s corporate governance procedures, are as follows

a. the Board has one independent non-executive durector who takes an active role m Board matters,

b  the Group has an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a Norination Commuttee, each of
which consists of the non-executive directors, and meets regularly with executive directors
attendance by mvitation. The Audit Commuitee has unrestricted access to the Group's anditor and
ensures that auditor independence has not been compromised,

¢ all business activity 15 orgamged withm a defmed structure with formal hines of responsibility and
delegation of authority, including a schedule of "matters referred to the Board", and

d. regular montornng of key performance indicators and financial results together with companson of
these against expectattons

Attendance at Board and Committee Meetings

Attendances of directors at Board and Commuttee meetings convened 1n the peniod, along with the number of
meetmgs they were invited to attend, are set out below

No. of meetings attended / No. of meetings invited to attend
Board Audit Commuttee Remuneration Nomination
meetings Committee Committee
Executive Directors
P J Reason 8/8 212 313 0/0
N J Goldsmith 8/8 272 0/0 0/0
Non-Executive
Directors
D Gare 8/8 212 4/4 1/1
DM Sherwin 8/8 212 4/4 11
M F McGoun 8/8 212 4/4 11
Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee comprises M F McGoun (Chatrman), D Gare and D M Sherwin, all of whom are non-
executive directors of the Company The Board 1s satisfied that the Audit Commuittee has all the recent and
relevant financial experience required to fulfil the role

Appomtments to the Audit Commuttee are made by the Board 1n consuitation with the Nomination Committee
and the chairman of the Audit Commuttee The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year and any other ime
as required by either the chairman of the Audit Commuttee, the Chief Fmancial Officer of the Group or the
external aunditor of the Group In addition, the Audit Commuitee shall meet with the external auditor of the
Group (without any of the executives attending) at any trme during the year as 1t deems fit

qTF




Instem plc
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Audit Committee (continued)
The Audit Committee

(a) monitors the financial reportmg and mternal finaneial control principles of the Group,

(b) mamtains appropriate relationships with the external auditor including considenng the
appomtment and remuneration of the external auditor and reviews and monitors the external
auditor’'s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process,

(c) reviews all financial results of the Group and financial statements, includmg all announcements m
respect thereof before submussion of the relevant documents to the Board,

{d) reviews and discusses (where pecessary) any issues and recommendations of the external auditor
wmecluding reviewing the external auditor’s management letter and management's response,

(e) constders all major findings of mternal operational audit reviews and management's response to
ensure co-ordination between mternal and external auditor,

&) reviews the Board's statement on internal reporting systems and keeps the effectiveness of such

systems under review; and
(g) considers all other relevant findings and audit programmes of the Group

The Audit Commttee s authorised to

(2) mvestigate any activity within its terms of reference,

(b) seek any mformation it requires from any employee of the Group, and

(c) obtain, at the Group’s expense, outside legal or other independent professional advice and to
secure the attendance of such persons to meetings as 1t considers necessary and appropnate

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee compnises M F McGoun (Chawrman), D Gare and D M Sherwin, all of whormn are
non-executive directors of the Company

The members of the Remuneration Commuttee are appomted by the Board on recommendation from the
Nomination Commuttee, in consultaton with the Chairman of the Remuneratton Commuttee The Chief
Executive Officer of the Group 1s normally mvited to meetings of the Remuneration Commttee to discuss the
performance of other executive directors but is not involved i any of the decisions. The Remunperatton
Commuttee mvites any person 1t thinks appropnate to join the members of the Remuneratton Commuitee at its
meetings The Remuneration Commuittes meets at least once a year and any other tume as requred by either the
Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee or the Chief Financial Officer of the Group

The Remuneration Commitiee

(a) ensures that the executive directors are fairly rewarded for therr individual contributions to the
overall performance of the Group but also ensures that the Group avoids paymg more than s
necessary for this purpose,

(b) constders the remuneration packages of the executive directors and any recommendations made by
the Chluef Executive Officer for changes to ther remuneration packages mcluding m respect of
bonuses (mcluding associated performance cntena), other benefits, pension arrangements and
other terms of their service contracis and any other matters relahng to the remuneration of or terms
of employment applicable to the executive directors that may be referred to the Remuneration

Commuttee by the Board,

() oversees and reviews all aspects of the Group’s share option schemes mcludmg the selection of
eligible directors and other employees and the terms of any options granted,

)] demonstrates to the Group's shareholders that the remuneration of the executive directors 1s set by

an independent commttee of the Board, and

(<} considers and makes recommendations to the Board about the public disclosure of mformation
about the executive directors’ remuneration packages and structures 1n addition to those required
by law or by the London Stock Exchange

_Pz;ge IOI"
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Instem plc
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee reports formally to the Board on ats proceedmngs afier each
meeting on all matters within 1ts duties and responsibilities The Remuneration Committee produces an annual
report which 15 included in the Group’s annual report and accounts

The Remuneration Commuttee 15 authonsed to

(a) mvestigate any activity withan its terms of reference,

{b) seek any mformation 1t requires from any employee of the Group;

{c) assess the remuneration paid by other UK hsted compames of a similar size 1 any comparable
industry sector and to assess whether changes to the executive directors’ remuneration 1s
appropnate for the purpose of making their remuneration competitive or otherwise comparable
with the remuneration paid by such companses, and

(d) obtain, at the Group’s expense, outside legal or other independent professional advice, including
independent remuneration consultants, when the Remuneration Commuttee reasonably believes it
18 necessary to do so and secure the attendance of such persons to0 meetings as it considers
necessary and appropnate

Nomunation Committee
The Nomsnaton Commuttee comprises D Gare (Charrman), M F McGoun and D M Sherwin, all of whom are
non-executive directors of the Company

Appomtments to the Nomnat:on Committee are made by the Board, in consultation with the Chairman of the
Nominatton Commuttee.

The Nomnation Commuttee may mvite any person 1t thinks appropriate to join the members of the Nomation
Commuttee at 1ts meetings

The Nomnation Commuittee

(a) regularly reviews the structure, size and compositton (including skills, knowledge and expenence)
required of the Board compared 10 11s curremt positon and makes recommendahons 1o the Board
with regard to any changes,

(b) gives full consideration to succession planming for directors and other semor executives in the
course of its work, taking mto account the challenges and opportunities facmg the Group, and what
skills and expertise are needed on the Board m the future,

(c) 1 responsible for identifying and nomunating for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill
Board vacancies as and when they anse, and

(d) evaliates the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence on the Board before an appomtment is
made and, i hght of this evaluation, prepares a description of the role and capabilities required for
a particular appomtment

The Chairman of the Nomination Commattee reports formally to the Board on 11s proceedings after each meeting
on all matters within 1ts duties and responsibilities

The Nomiration Commuittee also makes recommendations to the Board concerning

(a) formulating plans for succession for both executive and non-executive directors and m particular
the key roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer;

b membership of the Audit and Remuneration Commuttees, in consultation with the chairrmen of
those commuttees,

Page 11|
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Instem plc
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Nomination Committee (continued)

{c) the re-appointment of any non-executive durector at the conclusion of their specified term of office
having given due regard to their performance and ability to continue to contribute to the Board m
the light of the knowledge, skills and expenience required,

(d) the re-election by shareholders of any director under the “retirement by rotation” provisions in the
Company’s articles of association having due regard to ther performance and ability to contmue to
contribute to the Board i the Light of the knowledge, slalls and expenience required,

(e) matters relating to the continuation 1n office of any director at any fine including the suspension or
termination of service of an executive director as an employee of the Group subject to the
provisions of the law and his/her service contract, and

3] the appomtment of any director to execuhve or other office other than to the posittons of Charman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, the recommendation for which would be considered at a
meeting of the full Board

The Nomnation Commuttee 15 authorised to

(a) mvestigate any activity within its terms of reference,

{b) seek any information 1t requires from any employee,

{c) obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice at the Group's expense when the
Nomination Commuttee reasonably belteves it 15 necessary to do so, and

(d) mstruct external professional advisers to attend any meeting at the Group’s expense if the

Nemination Commuittee considers this reasonably necessary and appropniate

Internal Controls

The directors are responsible for establishing and maintamning the Group's system of mternal control and
reviewing its effectiveness The system of internal control 1s designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance agamnst
material misstatement or loss

The Board and semor executives meet to review both the nisks facing the business and the controls established
to mimmuse those risks and therr effectiveness in operation on an ongoing basis The aim of these reviews 1s to
provide reasonable assurance that matertal risks and problems are :dentified and appropriate action taken at an
early stage.

Going Concern

The directors have prepared and reviewed financial forecasts for the following two years After due
consideration of these forecasts and cumrent cash resources, the directors constder that the Company and the
Group have adequate financial resources to continue mn operational existence for the foreseeable future (being a
period of at least twelve months from the date of this report), and for this reason the financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis

On behalf of the Board
|\.|7 @T«\S rm

N J Goldsmith
Director and Company Secretary
21 Apnl 2015

Page 12|

T




Instem plc
DIRECTORS’REPORT

The directors submut their report and the Group and Company financial statements of Instern plc for the year
ended 31 December 2014

Instem ple 18 a public imited company, mcorporated and domuciled m England, and quoted on ATM

REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS
In measunng the successful development of the business, the directors focus on two important performance
indicators which strongly underwnte the future performance of the Group.

1 Total number of customers

In 2014 the Group had mn excess of 400 customers (2013 1n excess of 400 customers) for continuing
products.

2 Recurring revenue

The Group generates a substantial proportion of revenue from fees 1n respect of annual support, hosting
and routme upgrade services The value of these recurnng fees m 2014 was £9 2m (2013 £8 2my)

A more detailed review of the development and performance of the Group’s business durmg the year and its
position at the end of the year s set out 1n the Chairman’s Staternent, the Strategic Report and Financial Review
on pages 3to 8

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The directors consider that the continued mvestment n product and market development will allow the busimness
to grow orgamcalty m 1ts core markets Investment 1n business growth imtatives will also allow the busmess to
move mto new product and market areas The combination of organic growth along with strategic acquisihons
will support the expected growth as outhmed 1 the Chairman’s Statement and the Strategic Report.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

The Group continites 1ts development programme of software for the global pharmaceutical market includmg
the research and development of new products and enhancement to existing products The directors constder the
mvestment 1n research and development to be fundamental to the success of the busimness mn the firture

DIVIDERDS
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend

DIRECTORS
The following directors held office during the year

D Gare

M F McGoun
D M Sherwin
P J Reason

N J Goldsmuth

Details of the directors” service contracts and their respective notice terms are detaled m the Directors’
Remuneration report on page 15

e e e




Instem plc
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS
The interests of the directors who held office at 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this report were as

follows

2014 2013

No. of shares No. of shares

D Gare 2,278,427 2,278,427
D M Sherwin 1,580,066 1,580,066
P J Reason 665,287 665,287
M F McGoun 14,286 14,286
N I Goldsmth - -

Directors’ mterests in share options are detailed in the Remuneration report on page 15

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT
The general pohcy of the Group 1s to welcome employee involvement as far as 1t 1s reasonably practicable.
Employees are kept informed of progress by regular company meetings and monthly management reports

POLITICAL DONATIONS
The Group made no political donations 11 2014 or 2013

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group’s objectives and policies on financial mstruments are set out 1 note 18 to the financial statements.

INDEMNITY OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Under the Company’s Articles of Association and subject to the provisions of the Compames Act, the Group
may and has indemmfied all directors and other officers agamnst hability incurred m the execution or discharge
of their duties or the exercise of their powers, including but not himited to any hability for the costs of any legal
proceedings The Group has purchased and maintams appropriate msurance cover against legal action brought
against directors or officers

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 19 May 2015 at the offices of Baker Tilly,
Manchester The resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting, together with explanatory notes,
appear n a separate notice of Annual General Meeting which 1s sent to all shareholders A proxy card for
registered shareholders 1s distributed along with the notice

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITOR

The directors who were m office on the date of approval of these financial statements have confirmed, as far as
they are aware, that there 15 no relevant audit information of which the auditor 1 unaware Each of the directors
has confirmed that they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors i order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that 1t has been communicated to the

auditor

AUDITOR
Pursuant to $489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution to appont Baker Tilly UK Audit LLP as auditor will
be put to the members at the forthcormng Annual General Meeting

On behalf of the Board

P J Reason
Dhrector

21 April 2015
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Instem plc
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Instem plc 1s a company hsted on AIM and 1t 18 not required to comply with Schedule 8 of the Large and
Medmum Sized Compames and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 relatng to directors’
remumeration reports or the Listing Rules  The disclosures contained withun thas report are, therefore, made on a
voluntary basis and in keeping with the Board's commutment to best practice.

Remuneratior Committee

The Remuneraton Committee (‘the Commttee”) 15 composed entirely of non-executrve directors The
Committee was formed upon the public histing of the Company on 13 October 2010 The Chairman of the
Commmittee 1s M F McGoun. The terms of reference for the Commttee are to determine the Company’s policy
on executive remuneration and to consider and approve the remuneration packages for directors and key
executives of the Company, subject to ratification: by the Board Durmg the year, the Committee met on four
occasions Full details of the elements of each director’s remuneration are set out on page 16 Details of share-
based payments are shown 1 note 6 to the financial statements

Policy on Executive Director Remuneration

The Company’s current and ongoing policy aims to ensure that executive directors are rewarded fairly for therr
indrvidual contributicns to the Company’s overall performance and 15 designed to attract, retain and motivate
executrves of the nght calibre The Commuttee 15 responsible for recommendations on all elements of executive
remuneration 1ncluding, m particular, basic salary, annual bonus, share options and any other incentive awards
In umplementing the remuneration policy, the Commuttee has regard to factors specific to the Company, such as
salary and other benefit arrangements within the Company and the achievement of the Company’s strategic
objectives. The Committee determunes the Company’s Policy on executive remureration wath reference to
comparable companies of simmlar market capitalisation, location and business sector

Basic Salary

The basic salanes of executive directors are reviewed annually having regard to mdividual performance and
postiron within the Company and are intended to be competitive but farr using information provided from both
mternal and external sources

Performance Related Annual Bonus

Executrve directors are eligible for a performance related bonus based on Company performance, n particular,
the achievement of profit and cash targets The performance related anmal bonus forms a sigmificant part of the
level of remuneration cons:dered appropnate by the Commsttee In additrion to the formal bonuns scheme, the
Committee has the discretion o recommend the payment of ad hoc awards to reflect exceptional performance
No bonuses were paid or payable in respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013 £ml).

Pensions
Company contributions are made to the executive directors’ personal pension schemes up to a maximum of

16 5% of basic salary

Benefits
Benefits comprise car and fuel allowance and private healthcare and cntical 1llness cover. No executive director
recerves additional remuneration or benefits 1n relatton to bewng a director of the Board of the Company or any

subsidiary of the Company

Service Confracts
The Executive directors have contracts with notice periods between six and twelve months

The Board determunes the Company’s policy on non-executive directors’ remuneraton
D Gare, D M Sherwan and M F McGoun each have a contract that had an mmtial three year term commencing

October 2010 These contracts were renewed 1n December 2013, each with a notice period of three months
Since October 2013 Mr McGoun has been remunerated through a service company, Noble Adamson Limited




Instem plc
DIRECTORS’REMUNERATION REPORT (Continued)

The exzoluments pard to directors 1n the year ended 31 December 2014 were as follows

Salary  Benefits Pension 2014 2013
Total Tota]
£000 £000 £600 £000 £000
Executives

P J Reason 144 14 24 182 185
N J Goldsmith 100 11 11 122 119

Non-Executives
D Gare 44 - - 44 44
D M Sherwin 24 - - 24 24
M F McGoun 24 - - 24 24
Total 336 25 as 396 396

Directors’ and Employees® Share Options

Exercise Issue date Held at Granted Exercised Lapsed Held at

price(£) 31 Dec During durnng during 31 Dec
2013 Year Year Year 2014
P J Reason
Ordinary shares 1750 13/10/2010 187,427 - - - 187,427
0900 14/01/2013 23429 - - - 23,429
N J Goldsmith
Ordinary shares 2215 29/11/2011 40,000 - - - 40,000
1760 07/62/2012 20,000 - - - 20,000
0900 14/01/2013 15,000 - - - 15,000
Employees
Ordinary shares 1750 13/10/2010 304,568 - - - 304,568
2220 03/03/2011 101,351 - - (7,507) 93,844
2220 17/10/2011 14,667 - - - 14,667
1115 23/10/2012 40,000 - - - 40,000
0900 14/01/2013 61,397 - - - 61,397
Total 807,839 - - (7,507) 800,332

Subsequent to the year end, on 11 February 2015 81,168 share options were granted to employees with an
exercise pnice of £0 10 each.

Approved by the Board and signed on 1ts behalf by

M F McGoun
Independent Non-Executrve Chairman
21 April 2015
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Instem plc
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and Company financial statements for each financial
year The directors are requured by the ATM Rules of the London Stock Exchange to prepare Group financial
statements m accordance with Internatronal Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS™} as adopted by the European
Umon (“EU”) and have elected under Company law to prepare the Company financial statements m accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the EU

The financial statements are required by law and IFRS adopted by the EU to present farrly the financial position
of the Group and the Company and the financial performance of the Group The Companies Act 2006 provides
m relation to such financial statements that references 1n the relevant part of that Act to financial statements
grving a true and fair view are references to ther achieving a fair presentation

Under Company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affawrs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Group for that pertod

In prepanng the Group and Company financial statements, the directors are required to

select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply them consistently,

make judgements and accountmg estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

state whether they have been prepared 1n accordance with IFRSs adopted by the EU;

prepare the financial statements on the gomng concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the
Group and the Company will continue mn business

pooE

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accountmg records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group’s and the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Compames Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wrregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and miegrity of the corporate and financial information
mcluded on the Instem plc website

Legislation n the Umited Kingdom governmg the preparation and dissemunation of financial statements may
differ from legislation 1 other jurisdictions
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Instem plc
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INSTEM PLC

‘We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (“the financial statements™) on pages 19 to
66 The financial reporting framework that has been applied m thewr preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopied by the European Umien and, as regards the
parent company financial statements, as applied 1n accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, m accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Compames Act 2006 Our audst work has been undertaken so that we muight state to the company’s members
those matters we are required o state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibtlity to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a bady, for our audit werk, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As more fully explamed in the Directors’ Responsibihties Statement set out on page 17, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view Qur responsibility 18 to audit and express an opmion on the financial statements m accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards requure us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the andit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 15 provided on the Fiancial Reporting Council’s
website at http /fwww frc org ul/auditscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements
In our opmion
o the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and the parent’s affawrs as at
31 December 2014 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,
e the group financial statements have been properly prepared mn accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Umon,
»  the parent financial statements have been properly prepared 1 accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union and as applied 1n accordance with the Compames Act 2006, and
s  the financial statements have been prepared mn accordance with the requurements of the Compames Act
2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Compames Act 2006
In our opinton the information given m the Strategic Report and the Pirectors™ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report 1n respect of the followmg matters where the Compantes Act 2006 requures us to
report to you 1if, 1n our opinon
e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
¢ the parent company finaacial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns,
or
certain disclosures of directors® remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not recerved all the information 2nd explanations we requure for our audit

GRAHAM BOND FCA (Semor Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of BAKER TILLY UK AUDIT L1P, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

3 Hardman Street

Manchester

M3 3HF

2015
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Instem plc
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Note Year ended
Conhouing Operations 31 December
2014
£000
REVENUE 1 13,429
Operating expenses (11,699)
Amortisation of internally generated intangibles (297
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE AMORTISATION OF 1,433
ACQUIRED INTANGIBLES, SHARE BASED PAYMENT AND
NON-RECURRING COSTS
Amortisation of mtangibles ansing on acquisibion (649)
Share based payment (108)
PROFIT BEFORE NON-RECURRING COSTS 685
Non-recurring costs 2 (123)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 2 562
Finance income 3 9
Finance costs 4 (359)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 212
Taxation 8 (62)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 156
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE
Items that wall not be reclassified to profit and loss account
Actuanal loss on retirement benefit obligations (621)
Deferred tax on actuarial loss 124
(497)
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations M
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXFENSE FOR THE YEAR (463}
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR (313)
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
COMPANY 150
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY {313
Eamings per share from continumg operations
Basic 22 12p
Daluted 22 12p

Year ended
31 December
2013

£000

11,361
9.685)
(226)

1,450

(394)
(96)

960
(200)

760

145
(207)

698
(169

529

ettt

(587)
30

(357}
(50)
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Instem plc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Af 31 December 2014

Company Registration No 07148099

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Trade and other recervables
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Current tax payable
Fmancial habilies

TOTAIL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial hiabilities
Retirement benefit obligations

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Share capital
Share premium
Merger reserve
Shares to be 1ssued
Translation reserve
Retained deficit

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

11
19

12
13
14

15
16
17

17

21

23
23
23

£000

12,439
263
574

506
4,432
1,676

8,175

1,903

281
3,881

1,221
7,892
(326)
378
228
(3,974)

2013
£000 £000 £000
12,887
265
388
13,276 13,540
307
2,008
2,053
6,614 5,268
19,390 18,808
7,236
7
1,250
10,309 8,493
1,836
3,506
4,162 5,342
14471 13,835
1,176
7,892
(932)
270
194
(3.627)
5,419 4,973
19,890 18,808

The financial statements on pages 19 to 66 were approved by the Board of directors and authonsed for 1ssue

On 21 Apnl 2015 and are signed on tts behalf by

P J Reason
Darector

l\\\j dm\&m"{—&

N J Goldsmith
Darector
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Instem plc

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2014

Company Registration No 07148099

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equvalents

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Current tax payable
Financial Liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CUERRENT LIABILITIES
Fuaneial liabilities

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share caprtal

Share premium
Merger reserve

Shares to be 1ssued
Retamed profit

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

10

13
14

15
16
17

17

21
23
23
23
23

£0060

23,132

2,231
97

2,322

1,903

281

1221
7,892
11,308
378
155

2014

£000

23,132

2,328

25,460

4,225

281

4,506

20,954

25,460

£000

23,024

1,243
277

1,264
120
1,250

1,836

1,176
7,892
10,702
270

34

2013
£000

23,024

1,520

24,544

2,634

1,836

4,470

20,074

24,544

—_—

The financial statements on pages 19 to 66 were approved by the Board of directors and authorised for 1ssue
On 21 Apnl 2015 and are signed on its behalf by

N J Goldsmith

PSRacas,

P J Reason
Drrector

Darector
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Instem plc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adustments for

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangibles

Share based payments and shares to be 1issued
Retirement benefit obligatons

Net foreign exchange gains

Finance income

Finance costs

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE
MOVEMENTS IN WORKING CAPITAL
Movemenis i working capal.

Increase 1n inventones

(Increase)/Decrease mn trade and other receivables
Increase m trade and other payables

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Finance costs
Income taxcs

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Finance mncome received

Purchase of intangibie assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Payment of deferred considerahon
Acquisition of subsidianes

Cash acquired with subsidhanes

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Loan notes repaid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at start of year
Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance
of cash held m foreign currencres

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

Note 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000
212 698
127 9
937 620
108 96
(398) “412)
- 84
9 (145)
359 207
1,336 1,244
(196) (210)
(1,436) 823
743 (889) 31 644
447 1,888
(65) ®
100 35 74 65
482 1,953
9 61
(369 (407
124 (171)
{302) -
- (2,710
- 1,134
(786) (2,093)
- (250)
- {250
(304) (390)
2,053 2,450
3 M
14 1,676 2,053
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Instem plc
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Note 2014
£000 £000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation 1
Adiustments for

Finance mcome ©)
Finance cost 50

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS

BEFORE MOVEMENTS IN WORKING

CAPITAL 45

Maoavements in working capital

{Increase)/decrease 1 trade and other recervables (988)
Increase m trade and other payables 1,059

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 116

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Finance mcome received 6
Payment of deferred consideration (302)

Acquisitton of subsidiaries -

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (296)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Loan notes repa:d -

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES -

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (180)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 277

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR 14 97

2013

£000 £000
65
(3)
63
125
789
955
1,869
3
(2,710)
(2,707)
(250)
(250)
(1,088)
1,365
277
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Instem plc

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Called up Share Merger  Shares to be Translaton  Retamed Total
share Premium Reserve 1ssued reserve earnings Equity
capital
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance as at
1 January 2013 1,176 7,892 932) 174 284 (3,599) 4995
Profit for the year - - - - - 529 529
Other comprehensive
expense for the year - - - - (50} (557 (647
Total comprehensive
expense - - - - (50} (28) (118)
Share based payment - - - 96 - - 96
Balance at 31
December 2013 1,176 7,892 (932) 270 194 (3,627) 4,973
Profit for the year - - - - - 150 150
Other comprehensive
income/{expense) for - - - - 34 497) (463)
the year
Total comprehensive
mcome/(expense) - - - - 34 (347) (313)
Shares 1ssued 45 - 606 - - - 651
Share based payment - - - 108 - - 108
Balance as at 31
December 2014 1,221 7,892 (326) 378 228 (3,974) 5,419
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Called up Share Merger Sharesto  Retamned Total
share  Prenuum Reserve beissued  eamings Equity
capital
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance as at 1
January 2013 1,176 7,892 10,702 174 89 20,033
Loss for the year - - - - (55) (55)
Share based payment - - - 96 - 96
Balance as at 31 December 2013 1,176 7,892 10,702 270 34 20,074
Profit for the year - - - - 121 121
Shares 1ssued 45 - 606 - - 651
Share based payment - - - 168 - 108
Balance as at 31 December 2014 1,221 7,892 11,308 ky}.] 155 20,954




Instem plc
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Group 1s the provision of world class IT solutions to the early development
bealthcare market Instem’s solutions for data collection, management and analysis are used by customers
worldwide, to mect the needs of hfe science and healthcare orgamisations for data-driven decision making
leading to safer, more effective products Instem plc ts a Company incorporated m England and Wales under
the Companues Act 2006 and domzciled in England and Wales The registered office 1s Dhamond Way, Stone
Business Park, Stone, Staffordshire, ST15 0SD

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with Intemational Financial Reporang Standards
(IFRS) and IFRS Interpretation Commuttee (IFRIC) interpretations as adopted by the EU and the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The Group’s accounting reference date 1s 31 December

The acquisttion of the Instem LSS Group 1n 2010 did not qualify as a busmess combination under IFRS 3
‘Business Combinahons’ as Instem plc did not meet the defimtion of a business within that standard As a
consequence the transachon was treated as a poohing of mterests to reflect the substance of the transaction which
was that of the continuation of the existing Instem LSS Group

The financ:al statements have been prepared on the lustonical cost basis

The Company has taken advantage of the audit exemption for three of its non-trading subsidianes Instem Life
Science Systems Limuted, Instem Scientific Sohitzons Lumted and Logos Technologies Limuted, by virtue of
s479A of Compamnies Act 2006 The Company has provided parent guarantees to these three substdianes

In accordance with Section 408 of the Compantes Act 2006 the company has elected not to present 1ts own
income statement The profit for the year of the parent company 13 £121,000 (2013 loss of £55,000)

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all years
presented in these consolidated financial statements

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements incorporate those of the parent company, Instem plc, and its subsidiary
undertakings made up to 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013

In prepanng the consolidated financial statements, any mtra-Group balances, unrealised gamns and losses or
income and expenses ansmg from intra-Group trading are eliminated Where accounting policies used n
mdividual financial staterments of a subsidiary company differ from Group policies, adjustments are made to
bnng these policies 1n line with Group policies

Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as
to obtamm economic benefits from their activites  Subsidhanes are consohidated from the date on which control
1s transferred to the Group up until the date that control ceases

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of busmesses are accounted for using the acquisition method The consideration transferred 1n a
business combnation 1s measured at fair value, which 1s calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, habilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests 1ssued by the Group mn exchange for controi of the acquiree  Acquisition related costs are
recognised m profit or loss as mcurred




Instem plc
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

At the acquisthion date, the idennfiable assets acquired and the habihites assumed are recognised at their farr
value, except that deferred tax assets or liabilities are recogmsed and measured mn accordance with 1AS 12
‘Income taxes’

Contingent consideration 1s measured at its acquisiton-date fair value and is mecluded as part of the
consideration transferred. Changes 1n the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
pencd adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with correspondmg adjustments against goodwill. The
subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration 15 classified. Contingent
consideration that 1s classified as an asset or a hability 15 re-measured at subsequent reporting dates wath the
corresponding gain or loss bemng recogmsed m profit or loss Contingent consideration 1s recognised mitially at
fair value and subsequently camed at amortised cost, the difference between the gross amount and the fair value
1s recogmised m the imcome statement over the period in which the hability 1s settled using the effective interest
method

GOING CONCERN

Having made appropriate enqunes, the directors consider that the Group has adequate resources to enable 1t to
continue m operation for the foreseeable future. The Group has a sigmficant proportion of recurring revenue
from a well-established global customer base, supported by a largely fixed cost base A commtied working
capual facility 1s 1o place to support the Group’s working capital needs The Group has net current habilites of
£3 7m at 31 December 2014, mcluding deferred income of £6.8m (2013 £58m) The deferred income recurs
each year on renewal of contracts, and 1n general the Group has either received the cash or has raised invoices
for the services As a result, this amount reverses dunng the financial year in the normal course of busmess The
Group has strong positive cash reserves, as well as the commutted working capital facility of £2m referred to
above which, at 31 December 2014 was £0 4m utilised The Group has, therefore, sufficient hqud assets to
cover 1ts day-to-day needs, in addition to 1is strong trading cash flow generation.

The financial position of the Group, its cash flows and hqudity position are set out 1n the primary statements
within these financial statements Detailed projections have been made for the 12 months following the
approval of the financial statements and sensitivity analysis undertaken This work gives the directors
confidence as to the future trading performance of the Group Accordngly the directors conunue to adopt the
gowmg concern basis for the preparation of the financial statements

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Group follows the prninciples of IAS 18 ‘Revenue Recognition’, m determumng appropnate revenue
recogmtion principles In general, revenue 18 recogmsed to the extent that 1t 1s probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group

Revenue compnses the value of software licence sales, SaaS subscniption, nstallaton, tramng, and
maimtenance and support services Revenue 1s recogmsed when (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exasts; (1) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, (1) the sales price 1s fixed and determinable
and (1v) collectability 1s reasonably assured.

For software arrangements with multiple elements revenue 1s recogmised dependent on whether vendor-specific
objective evidence ("VSOE”) of fair value exists for each of the elements VSOE is determined by reference to
sales made to customers on a stand-alone basis Where there 15 no VSOE revenue is recogmsed over the full
term of each contract.

Revenue from hcence based products 1s recogmsed when the nsks and rewards of ownershup of the product are
transferred to the customer 1 ¢ when licence keys are dehivered to the customer, the sales price 1s fixed and
determinable and collectability 15 reasonably assured

Revenue from software mamtenance, SaaS and other time based contracts are recogmsed over the mvoiced
contract penod.
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Instem plc
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)
Revenue from mstallation and tramning 1s recogmsed on a percentage completion basis on fixed price contracts
or as services are provided in respect of ime and materials contracts

The excess of amounts mvoiced over revenue is mncluded in aceruals and deferred income  If the amount of
revenue recognised exceeds the amounts mvoiced the excess amount 18 mcluded wrthin amounts recoverable on
contracts

PROFIT FROM OFPERATIONS BEFCRE AMORTISATION OF INTANGIBLES ARISING ON
ACQUISITION, SHARE BASED PAYMENT AND NON-RECURRING COSTS

Profit from operations before amortisation of mtangibles arising on acquisition, share based payment and non-
recurnag costs 15 profit ansmg from the Group’s normal trading activities stated before amortisation of
intangibles ansmg on acquusition, share based payment charges, non-recurring costs, finance income, finance
costs and taxahon Profit 15 adjusted m this way to provide a clearer measure of underlymng operatmg
performance

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Profit from operations 18 profit from the Group’s ordinary activities stated before finance income and costs, and
come tax expense

SEGMENTAL REPORTING

IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ requures segmental information for the Group on the basis of information reported
mtemnally to the chuef operating decision-maker for decision-making purposes The Group considers that the role
of chief operating decision-maker 15 performed by the Group’s Board of directors

Since the Group 1s pnmanly providing goods and services to the global life sciences market there 1s only one
operating segment which 1s monitored by the business

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions 1n foreign currencics are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and Liabilities denominated mn foreign currencies at the reporung date are translated at the
foreign exchange rate rling at that date Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recogmsed mn
profit or loss Non-monetary assets and habiities that are measured mn terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denomunated 1 foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated at foreign exchange rates
ruling at the date the fair value was determuned.

The assets and habilites of foreign operations, including goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on
consolidation, are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the reporting date The revenue and expenses of
foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the year where this rate approximates to the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions, or otherwise at the exchange rate ruling at the date of each
transaction

Exchange differences ansing from the translation of foreign operations are taken directly to the translation
reserve They are released into profit or loss upon disposal of the foreign operation.
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Instem plc
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (contiued)
The presentattonal currency adopted by the Group 1s Sterlmg (GBP) The funchonal currencies of the pnincipal
companies m the Group are as follows

Instemn plc — Sterling (GBP)
Instem Life Science Systems Limited — Sterling (GBP)
Instem LSS Limted — Sterling (GBP)
Instem LSS (North America) Limited - US Doliars (USD)
Instem LSS Asia Limited ~ Hong Kong Dollars (HKD)
Instern Information Systems (Shangha) Limited — Renminhi (RMB)
Instem Scientific Limited — Sterling (GBP)
Instem Scientific Solutions Lirited ~ Sterhng (GBP)
Instem Scientific Inc —US Dollars (GSD)
Instern India Pvt Lumted — Indian Rupees (INR)
Instem Chirucal Holdings Lirmited — Sterlmg (GBP)
Instern Climcal Limited — Sterling (GBP)
Instem Climeal Inc — US Dollars (USD)
Logos Technologies Lumited — Sterling (GBP)
Perceptive Instruments Linmted — Sterling (GBP)

The exchange rates used to translate the financial statements into Sterling (GBP) are as follows

Hong Chinese Indian

US Dollar Kong Renmnb Rupee
(USD) Dollar (RMB) (INR)

(HKD)
¢ Average rate for year ended 31 December 2013 B 5707 12 1832 96579  91.7069
e (Closing rate at 31 December 2013 1 6494 12.7915 100096 102.1390
e  Average rate for year ended 31 December 2014 16470 12.7733 10 1437 100 5207
s  Closing rate at 31 December 2014 1 5562 12.0780 9 6686 99 0440

FINANCE INCOME

Interest ncome 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective nterest
rate apphcable, which 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected lhife
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount. Finance tncome includes exchange gamns on the
translation of mtra-group funding balances.

FINANCE COSTS

Net finance costs include mterest payable, exchange losses on the translation of mter-company funding
balances, unwinding discount from future deferred consideration payments, finance charges on finance leases
and net interest on pension scheme hiabihittes Interest payable 15 recogmsed 1n the statement of comprehensive
mcome as 1t acerues, using the effective interest method.

LEASING

Where assets are financed by leasing agreements that give nghts approximating to ownership (“finance leases™),
the assets are treated as if they had been purchased outnght The amount camtalised 1s the fair value or, iof
lower, the present value of the mimmum lease payments payable during the lease term. The corresponding
leasing commitments are shown as finance lease obhgations to the lessor
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Instem plc
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

LEASING {continued)
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of lease obligations so as to achieve a

constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabihty Finance charges are charged to finance costs
m the statement of comprehensive income.

All other leases are “operatmg leases” and the annual rentals are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the lease term.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Group has applied the requrements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment. In accordance with the transitional
provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were
wmvested as of 1 January 2007

The Group 1ssues equity-seftled share-based payments to certam employees Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant by reference to the fair value of the equity 1nstruments
granted The fair value determuined at the grant date of equity-settled share-based payments 1s expensed on a
strarght-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the munber of instruments that wall
eventually vest with a corresponding adjustment to equity Fair values are measured by use of the Black-
Scholes model and for options with a performance condition, Binormual or Monte Carlo models are used. The
expected kfe used 1n the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best eshmate, for the effect of non-
transferality, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations

Non-vesting and market vesting conditions are taken 1nto account when estimating the fair value of the option at
grant date Service and non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of options
expected to vest at each reporting date Market vesting conditions are hnked to the Group’s share pnce
performance relative to the performance of the ATM All share index Non-market vesung conditions are hnked
to trading performance and service over defined time penods

Cancelled or settled options are accounted for as an acceleration of vesting The unrecogmsed grant date faur
value 1s recogmsed 1n profit or loss m the year that the ophions are cancelled or settled. Where the terms of the
options are modified and the modification mncreases the fair value or number of equity instruments granted,
measured immediately before and afier the modification, the tncremental fair value is spread over the remaining
vesting period

Options over the Company’s shares granted to employees of subsidiaries are recognised as a capital contribution
by the Company to the subsidiaries

TAXATION
Taxation expense mncludes the amount of current income tax payable and the charge for the year mn respect of
deferred taxation

The mcome tax payable 1s based on an estmation of the amount due on the taxable profit for the year Taxable
profit 15 different from profit before tax as reported in the statement of comprehensive mcome because it
exchudes ttems of mcome or expenditure which are not taxable or deductible m the year as a result of esther the
nature of the item or the fact that 1t 18 taxable or deductible mn another year The Group’s hability for current tax
15 calculated by using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Income tax credits for research and development activities are recogmsed on a cash basis or when their receipt 1s
reasonably certain

Deferred tax 15 accounted for on the basis of temporary differences ansing from the differences between the tax
base and accounting base of assets and liabilihes
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax 1s recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent where 1t anses from the
mitial recogmion of an asset or liability 1n a transaction that 18 not a business combination. Deferred tax assets
are recogmised only to the extent that 1t 18 probable that future taxable profits will be available aganst which

temporary differences can be utihised.

Deferred tax 1s charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive mcome, except when 1t relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case 1t 15 dealt with within equity It 1s calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the penod when the asset 1s realised or the hability 1s settled.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets purchased separately from a business are capitalised at their cost.

Intellectual Property, Customer Relationships and Patents

The Group makes an assessment of the fair value of intangible assets ansing on acquisitions These include
Intellectual Property, Customer Relationships and Patents  An intangible asset will be recogrsed as long as the
asset 15 1denntifiable and s fair value can be measured reliably. An mtangible asset 1s rdentifiable if 1t 1s
separable or 1f 1t was obtamed through contractual or legal nghts Amortisation 18 provided on the fair value of
the asset and 15 calculated on a straight hne basis over its useful hfe. The useful Iife for Intellectual Property,
Customer Relatonships and Patents 18 five years Amortisaton 15 recogmsed within the statement of
comprehensive wmecome  All mtangible assets except Goodwill are amortised

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions, being the excess of the fair value of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s imterest m
the fair value of the identfiable assets and liabilities acquired, 1s capatalised and tested for impairment on an
annual basis

Any impairment 15 recognised immediately n profit or loss and 1s not subsequently reversed. For the purpose of
mopaument testing goodwill 1s allocated to cash generating umts of Instem plc, which represent the smaflest
1dentafiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash mflows from
other assets or groups of assets.

Computer Sofiware

Computer software 1s carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss  Externally
acqured computer software and software licences are capitalised and amortised on a strarght hne basis over
their useful economic lives of 3 years. Costs relating to development of computer software for mternal use are
capitalised once the recogmtion cntena of IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” are met When the software 1s available
for 1ts use, these costs are amortised over the estimated wseful life of the software

Internally generated intangible assets
Expenditure on research activities 1s recogrused in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred

Expenditure anising from the Group’s development of software for sale to thurd parties 1s recogmised only 1f ail
of the following conditions are met.

an assct 18 created that can be identified,

1t 13 probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits;

the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably;

the Group has the intention to complete the asset and the abality and intention to use or sell 1t;
the product or process is techmically and commercially feasible, and

sufficient resources are available to complete the development and to either sell or use the asset

Where these criteria have not been achieved, development expenditure 15 recogmsed m profit or loss m the
penoed 1n which 1t 15 mcurred

Internally-generated intangible assets are amorhsed, once the product 15 available for use, on a straight-lme basis
over their useful hives (five to eight years)
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Instem plc
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated m the statement of financial positton at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for impairments

Depreciation 1s provided on all assets so as to write off the cost less eshmated residual value on a straight line
basis as follows

Short leasehold property - Over term of lease
IT Hardware and Software - 12%% - 33% per annum

Depreciation 15 recogmised within operating expenses

The expected useful hves and resadual values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an annual basis
and, 1f necessary, changes 1n useful lives are accounted for prospectively.

The gan or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 15 determuned as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 15 recogmused 1n the statement of comprehensive income

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS EXCLUDING GOODWILL
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (excluding goodwall) 1s reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

At each reporting date the Group reviews the carrying value of its property, plant and equpment and mtangble
assets to determune whether there 15 any mdication that those assets have suffered an mmpairment loss If any
such mdication exists the recoverable amount of the asset is estumated in order to determmne the extent of the

unpairment loss

Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating umit to which the asset belongs A cash generating umt 1s the
smallest identifiable group of assets that penerates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets

Recoverable amount 1s the lugher of fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use In assessing value 1n use the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the tume value of money and the nsks specific to the asset, for which the
estumates of future cash flows have not been admsted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset 1s estmated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to 1ts recoverable amount. An impairment loss 18 recogmsed as an expense immediately

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrymg amount of the assets 1s increased to the revised
estumate of 1ts recoverable amount, but so that the mncreased carrymng amount does not exceed the carrying
amouni that wouid have been determuned had no impairment loss been recogmsed for the asset in prior years A
reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised wn profit or loss immediately

INVENTORY
Inventory 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valve lnventory includes billable employee expenses
These are stated at the lower of amortised cost and net realisable value

Provision 1s made where necessary for obsolete and slow moving inventory
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Classification of financial instruments
Financial instruments are classifted as financial assets, financial habilities or equity mstruments

Recogmition and valuation of financial assets

Financial assets are imtially recorded at their fair value net of transacton costs At each reporing date, the
Group reviews the carrying value of 1ts financial assets to determine whether there is objective evidence of an
mdication of impairment. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount 15 estumated and any 1dentified
umpairment loss 15 recogmsed m the statement of comprehensive income

Investments

Investments m subsidianes, associates and jomnt ventures are recorded at cost m the statement of financial
position. They are tested for unpairment when there is objective evidence of imparrment Any impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 1n the penod they occur

Cash and cash equavalents

Cash and cash equuvalents compnse cash it hand and cash deposits which are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts
whuch are repayable on demand as these form an mtegral part of Group cash management

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are classified as loans and receivables and are imtally recogmsed at far value They are
subsequently measured at thewr amortised cost using the effective imterest method less any provision for
immparrment. A provision for impairment 15 made where there 15 objective evidence that amounts will not be
recovered in accordance with onginal terms of the agreement. A provision for impairment 1s established when
the carrymg value of the receivable exceeds the present value of the future cash flows discounted using the
origmal effective interest rate  The carrying value of the receivable 1s reduced through the vse of an imparment
provision account and any impairment loss 15 recogmsed in the statement of comprehensive 1rcome

Fmancial habilines and equity

Financial hiabilittes and equity instruments are classified accordmg to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered mto  An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a resadual interest 1n the assets of
the Group after deducting all of 1ts habilhities

Bank borrowings and loan notes

Interest-beanng loan notes and bank overdrafis are recorded initially at their fair value, net of direct transaction
costs Such instruments are subsequently carmmed at therr amortised cost and finance charges are recogmsed n
the statement of comprehensive mcome over the term of the instrument using an effective rate of interest
Finance charges are accounied for on an accruals basis to the statement of comprehensive income Overdrafis
are offset against cash and cash equivalents when the Group has a legal right of off-set

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are not interest beanng and are 1mtally recogmsed at farr value and subsequently at

amortsed cost.

Ordinary share caputal
For ordinary share capital, the par value 15 recogmsed 1n share capital and the premuum in the share premium
reserve

Denrvative financial instruments
The Group’s activities expose 1t primanily to foreign currency nsk. The Group uses forward contracts to hedge
this exposure The Group does not use denvative financial instrurnents for speculative purposes.
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Instem plc
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group does not adopt the hedge accounting provisions and as such, these dertvatives are classified as
financial instruments held for trading 1n accordance with IAS 39 They are mutially and subsequently measured
at fair value wath gains and losses recognised m the statement of cornprehensive income

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contrbution schemes

A defined contribution scheme 15 a pension plan under which the Group pays a fixed contribution to a scheme
with an external provider The amount charged to the statement of comprehensive mcome 1n respect of pension
costs and other post-retirement benefits 15 the total of contributions payable in the year Differences between
coatributions payable in the year and contnbutions actually paid are shown as either other payables or other
recervables mn the statement of financial positton. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paad

Defined benefit schemes

A defined benefit scheme 1s a pension plan under which the Group pays contributtons m order to fund a defined
amount of pension that the employees under the scheme will receive on retirement. The cost of providing the
benefits 18 deterrmned using the projected vmt credit method with actuarial valuatons bemg camed out

regularly

An asset or liability is recogmsed equal {o the present value of the defined benefit obligation, adjusted for
mnrecognised past service costs and reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

Actuanal gams and losses are recogmused 1n the statement of other comprehensive income 1n the year 1n which
they occur, whilst expected returns on plan assets, servicing costs and financing costs are recogmsed m the
staternent of comprehensive income

The rate used to discount the benefit obligations 15 based on market yields for high quality corporate bonds with
terms and currencies consistent with those of the benefit obligations

Changes made to LAS19 that came nto force for accounting periods on or after 1 January 2013 are as follows
*  The “finance cost” which was previously the difference between the interest on hiabihities and expected
return on assets 15 replaced by a “net interest cost” This means that the expected return on assets 1s
effectively based on the discount rate with no allowance made for any outperformance expected from
the Scheme’s asset holding
s  Actual adrmmstration expenses are required to be mcluded m the Statement of Financial Position.
PROVISIONS
Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obhgation as a result of a past event which 1t 1s

probable will result m an outflow of economuc benefits that can be reliably eshmated.

The time value of money 18 not expected to be materia! and therefore future outflows have not been discounted
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ADOPTION OF IFRS

The Group and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance wath IFRS, IAS and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commuttee (IFRICs) effective as at 31 December 2014. The
Group and Company have not chosen to adopt any amendments or revised standards early

[FRSs ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The following IFRSs, IASs and IFRICs have been 1ssued, are not yet effective, and have not been adopted by
the Group or the Company in these financial statements The directors do not beheve the adoption will have a
matenal 1mpact on the business

IAS 1‘Presentation of financial statements’- effective 1 January 2016
IFRS10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ - effectivel January 2016

IFRS 12 ‘Dnsclosure of Interests 1n Other Entities’ - effective 1 January 2016
IAS 28 ‘Investments 1n associates’ effective - 1 January 2016

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts wath customers” effective - 1 January 2017
IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ effective - 1 January 2018

IFRSs ADOPTED IN THE YEAR
The following IFRSs, 1ASs and IFRICs have been adopted for the first time 1n the year As expected their
adoption has not had a matenial impact on these financial statements

IFRS ¢ ‘Financial Instruments’ — effecuve 1 January 2014

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ — effective 1 January 2014

IFRS 11 ‘Jont Arrangements’ — effective 1 January 2014

IFRS 12 ‘Dnsclosure of interests 1n other entities” — effective 1 January 2014

IFRS 14 ‘Regulatory deferral accounts- effective 1 January 2014

IAS 27 “Separate financial statements’ (Amended) — effective 1 January 2014

IAS 28 “Interests m Associates and Joint Ventures” (Amended) — effective 1 January 2014
1AS 32 ‘Financial Instruments Presentation’ — effective 1 January 2014

IAS 36 ‘Impamrment of Assets’ — effective 1 January 2014

IAS 39 ‘Fmancial Instruments Recogmtion and measurement’ — effective 1 January 2014
IFRIC 21 *Lewies’ — effective 1 Jamiary 2014

IFRIC 14 — 1AS 19 — The Limut on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimmum Funding Requirements and therr
Interaction was effective for accounting penods beginnmg after 1 Januvary 2008 The directors have considered
issues ansing from this amendment to IAS 19 and feel that 1t 15 unhikely that the schedule of contributions
agreed with the trustees of the LSS pension scheme wall result m an TAS19 surplus in the scheme
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Instem plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

1

SEGMENTAL REPORTING

For manapement purposes, the Group s currently orgamsed into one operating segment — Global Life

Sciences

Segment results, assets and habilities include tems darectly attributable to a segment as well as those that

can be allocated on a reasonable basis

INFORMATION BY PRODUCT TYPE
Licence fees

Annual support fees

SaaS subscription fees

Professional services

Funded development imtatives

INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION
UK

Rest of Europe

USA and Canada

Rest of World

INFORMATION BY GEQGRAPHICAL LOCATION
UK

USA and Canada

Rest of World

MAIJOR CUSTOMERS

REVENUE
2014 2013
£060 £000
2,734 2,282
6,984 6,307
1,822 1,543
1,763 1,175

126 54
13,429 11,361
REVENUE
2014 2013
£000 £000
2,141 2,496
2,699 1,991
7,583 5871
1,006 1,003
13,429 11,361

NON-CURRENT ASSETS EXCLUDING

DEFERRED TAXATION
2014 2013
£000 £000

12,664 13,120
16 14
22 18
12,702 13,152

No customer represents more than 10% of Group revenue (2013 ml)
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Instem plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

2014 2013
£000 £000
Profit from operations includes the followng sigmificant
items
Depreciation and amounts written off property, plant and
equiproent
Charge for the year
Owned assets 127 96
Amortisation of intangible assets 937 620
Research and development costs 1,026 1,379
Operating lease rentals
Plant and machinery 4 4
Land and builldings 252 376
Amounts payable to Baker Tilly UK Audit LIP and ther
associates mn respect of both audit and non-audit services
Audit services
- Statutory audit of parent and consohdated financial 16 15
information
Other services
Audit of subsidianies where such services are provided by 43 38
Baker Thlly UK Audit LLP or 1ts associates
Audit related assurance services 21 15
Taxation services - Comphance 15 11
Taxation services - Advisory 3 8
Corporate finance services - 25
126 112
The following table analyses the nature of expenses 2014 2013
£000 £000
Staff costs (see note 5) 7,536 6,235
Depreciation (see note 11) 127 96
Operating lease rentals 256 380
Software maintenance charges 374 333
Licence costs 188 110
Other expenses 3,218 2,531
Total cost of sales, distribution costs, administrative expenses and other
operating expenses 11,699 9,685

NON-RECURRING COSTS

The non-recurnng costs wncluded a net charge of £0 06m relating to a trade dispute, net of msurance
proceeds of £0 09m, and £007m of professional fees associated with the Perceptive Instruments

acqusition in 2013
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Instem plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

3

FINANCE INCOME

Bank interest
Foreign exchange gains

FINANCE COSTS

Bank loans and overdrafis

Unwinding discount

Net mterest charge on pension scheme
Foreign exchange losses

EMPLOYEES

Average monthly nnmber (inchiding non-executive
directors)

Byrole

Directors, adoumstration and supervision
Software design, sales and customer service

Employment cosis
Wages and salanes

Social secunity costs
Other pension costs

A charge of £0 1m (2013 £0 1m) arose in respect of share based payment

2014 2013
£000 £000
9 61

- 84

9 145
2014 2013
£000 £600
65 9

46 63
152 135
96 -
359 207
2014 2013
Number Number
42 39

98 84
140 123
2014 2013
£000 £000
6,382 5,207
590 514
564 514
7,536 6,235
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6

SHARE BASED PAYMENT
Equity-Settled Share Option Plan

Under the approved and unapproved option schemes, the Remuneration Commuttee can grant options to
employees of the Group Options are granted with a fixed exercise price at the date of grant. The
contractual life 15 generally ten years from the date of grant Options generally become exercisable after
three years Certain options issued to directors and senior employees carry market based performance
conditions

2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price EXEerclse price
Number £ Number £
Outstanding at the beginning of the

year 807,839 1.71 708,013 182
Granted - - 06,826 090

Lapsed (7,507) 222 - -
Outstanding at end of the year 800,332 171 807,839 171
Exercisable at 31 December 640,507 186 491,996 175

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 had exercise prices of £0 900,
£1 115, £1.750, £1 760, £2.215 and £2 220 and a weighted average remaming contractual life of 6 years
4 months (2013 7 years 4 months)

New options are valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and for performance conditions,
the Bmomial or Monte Carle models The fawr market value of option awards granted dunng the year has
been estumated usmg the following key asswmptions — note there were no options granted duning 2014

2014 2013
Average exercise price n/a £090
Average market price n/a £135
Average vesting penod (years) n/a 3
Expected volatility n/a 17.7%
Option Life (years) n'a 10
Expected hfe n/a 6
Risk free rate n/a 114%
Expected dividend yield n/a 0%
Expected lapse rate n/a 0%
Fair value of options n/a £025

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of a comparable business, prior
to the period when the Company’s shares were histed on the ATM market Volatiity since listing has
been calculated using the daily mud-market share price The expected hife used in the mode! has been
adjusted, based upon the management’s best estimate for the effects of non-transferabibity, exercise
restrictions, and behavioural considerations
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

6

SHARE BASED PAYMENT (continued)

Opions over 556,599 shares (2013. 564,106 shares) incorporate a market performance conditbion based

on the Company’s share price

The farr value of options granted in the year 1s £ml (2013 £0 (2m)

Subsequent to the year end, on 11 February 2015 81,168 share options were granted to employees with

an exercise pnice of £0 10 each
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Amounts payable by Instem plc.
Emoluments

Amounts payable by subsidiary compames
Emoluments
Money purchase penston contribufions

Total emoluments

Number of directors to whom retirerment benefits
are accrnnng under

Defined contribution schemes

The hughest pard director 1s shown 1 the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
TAXATION

Income taxes recogmised in profit or loss
Current tax.

UK corporation tax on profits of the year
Foreign tax

Foreign tax 1n respect of previous years
Adjustments 1n respect of previcus years
Adjustments in respect of R&D tax credit

Total current tax
Deferred tax
Current year charge

Adjustment 1n respect of previous years
Renrement benefit obligation

Total deferred tax

Total mcome tax recogmsed in the current year

2014 2013
£000 £000
92 92
269 267
35 37
396 396
2014 2013
Number Number
2 2
2014 2013
£000 £000
- 42
272 147
239 (227)
{i71) 121
(92) -
248 83
30) i
(103) 11
{53) 64
(186} 86
62 169
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

8

TAXATION (contmued)

The income tax expense can be reconciled to the
accounting profit as follows-

Profit before tax

Profit before tax multiphed by standard rate of
corporation tax m the UK 21 5% (2013 23 25%)

Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Fixed asset timmg dafferences

Dafferences 1n overseas tax rates
Adjustments 1 respect of prior years

Tax losses utilised m respect of subsidiaries
Tax losses (utilised)/carried forward

Total meome tax expense recogmsed in profit or
loss

2014
£000

212

46

2013
£000

698
162

50

63
©5)
(15)

3

169
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Instem plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwli Software  Intellectual Customer Patents Total
property  Relationships

Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost g
At 1 January 2013 6,356 1,486 819 325 21 9,007
Additions from
contnuing operations - 407 - - - 407
Additions from
acqusitions in the
peniod 3,031 - 1,403 632 - 5,066
At 31 December 2013 9,387 1,893 2,222 957 21 14,480
Addstions from
continuing operations - 369 - - - 369
Additions from
acquisItions 10 prior
perod 120 - - - - 126
At 31 December
2014 9,507 2,262 2,222 957 21 14,969
Amounts wnitten off
At 1 January 2013 - 546 301 119 7 973
Arnortisation expense - 226 303 87 4 620
At 31 December 2013 - 772 604 206 11 1,593
Amortsation expense - 297 445 191 4 937
At 31 December 2014 - 1,069 1,049 397 15 2,530
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 9,387 1,121 1,618 751 10 12,887
At 31 December
2014 9,507 1,193 1,173 560 6 12,439

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortisation within Software includes mternally generated
and externally acquired elements The cost of internally generated software amounts to £2 3m (2013
£1 9m) with accumulated amortisatton of £1.1m (2013 £0 8m) Software addations for the year include

£312,000 relating to mternal development (2013 £316,000)

The additicns from acquisitons 1n prior penod of £120,000 arose from deferred income m Perceptive
Instruments Limited not previously recogmsed on mmtal acquisttion.
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9

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill amounting to £5 858m (2013 £5 858m) relates to a cash generating umt (CGU), bemg the
Instem business acquued on the management buyout of Instem LSS Limuted on 27 March 2002

Goodwill amounting to £0 498m (2013 £0 498m), relates to a CGU, being the BioWisdom Limited (now
Instem Scientfic Limnted) business acquired on 3 March 2011  Goodwill amounting to £2 482m (2013

£2 482m), relates to a CGU, bewng the Logos Heldings Limted (now Instern Climcal Holding Limited)
business acquired on 10 May 2013  Goodwll amounting to £0 669m (2013- £0 549m) relates to a CGU,
bemng the Perceptive Instruments Limited business acquired on 21 November 2013

During the period, goodwill was tested for umpawrment m accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets” The recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded the carrying amounts of goodwill The
recoverable amount for each of the CGU has been measured using a value-in-use calculation and as such
no mmpaiment was deemed necessary

The key assumptions used, which are based on management’s past expenence, for the value-in-use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and direct costs dunng the period The
value—in-use calculations are based on the future cash flows from approved forecasts for two years which
have been extrapolated to cover a penod of five years, and then a termmal value calculated using the
Gordon Growth Model, to take account of the software development cycle and the high percentage of
recurning revenues from the customer base At 31 December 2014 a pre-tax discount rate of 11 1%
(2013 13 0%) was used mn the value-n-use calculation based on the Group’s cost of capital

Projected cash flows were based on detailed profit and cashflow projections through to 2015 with a 2 5%
assumption of growth beyond 2015 The projections were based on reasonable assumptions 1n respect of
business growth rates, payroll and other cost increases and related cashflow mmpacts. No indication of
impairment was found when assumptions of growth of 2.5% beyond 2015 were used

The recoverable amount of the Instem CGU exceeds the carrying amount of this CGU by 168%, for the
Instem Scientific CGU by 580%, for Instem Chnical CGU by 117% and, Perceptive Instruments CGU by
152% The directors consider the discount rate and revenues to be the most sensitive assumptions used n
the impairment reviews  An imncrease m the discount rate of 36%, or a reduction m certam revenues of m
excess of 5%, would result in the recoverable amount of the Instern CGU being equal to 1ts carrying
amount. An increase of 68% n the Instem Scientific discount rate, or a reduction 1n revenues of 20%
would result m the recoverable amount of the CGU being equal to 1ts carrymg amount An increase of
36% n the Instem Chmcal discount rate, or a reduction in revenues of 16% would result i the
recoverable amount of the CGU being equal to 1ts carrying amount. An increase of 28% 1n the Perceptive
Instruments discount rate, or a reduction 1n revenues of 25% would result 1o the recoverable amount of
the CGU being equal to 1ts carrymg amount.

Amortisation expenses are disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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10 INVESTMENTS

Company
Cost at beginming of year
Additions

At end of year

The company has four wholly-owned subsidiaries and ten wholly-owned sub-subsidianes, details of

whuch are as follows

Company Activity Ownership
Instem Life Science Systems Holding company 100% by Instem pic
Limited
(company mumber 04339129)
England and Wales
Tostem LSS Limited Software development, sales, 100% by Instem Life Science
(company number 03548215) sales support and admimistrative  Systems Limuted
England and Wales support
Instem LSS (North America) Sales, sales support and 100% by Instem LSS Lumited
Limted admimstrative support
{company number 02126697)
England and Wales
Instemn LSS (Asia) Lumted Holding company 100% by Instem LSS Limsted
(company number 1371107)
Hong Kong
Instem Information Systems Sales, sales support and service 100% by Instem LSS (Asia)
(Shanghar) Limited Limeted
{company number
310115400257075)
Shangha, PRC
Instern Scientific Limited Leading provider of software 100% by Instem plc
{company number 03861669) solutions for extractmg
England and Wales mtelligence from R&D related
healthcare data
Instem Scientific Solutions Dormant 100% by Instern Scientific
Limited Limited
{company number 03598020)
England and Wales
Leading provider of software 100% by Instem Scientific
Instern Scientific Inc solutions for extracting Limited
USA intelhgence from R&D related
heaithcare data
Instem India Pvt Lumuted Software development 99.9% by Instern L.8S Limited
(company number 0 1% by Instem LSS (NA)
U73100MH2012FTC231951) Limited
India

£000

23,024
108

23,132
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10

INVESTMENTS (continued)
Company

Instem Climcal Holdings Limited
(company oumber 05840032)
England and Wales

Insterm Cliucal Lirmted
{company number 06959053)
England and Wales

Instem Clinical Inc.
USA

Logos Technologies Limited
(company number 05836842}
England and Wales

Perceptive Instruments Limited
(company number 02498351}
England and Wales

Activity

Helding of miellectual property
nghts and investment in group
companies

Provision of electronic data
capture and climcal management
solutions to the pharmaceutical
imdustry

Provision of electromc data
capture and chmcal management
solutions to the pharmaceutical
mdustry

Dormant

Development, manufacture and
supply of software and hardware
products for m witro study data
collection and study
management 1 the genetic
toxicology, microbiology and
mmunology markets

Ownership

100% by Instem plc

100% by Iostem
Holdngs Limited

100% by Instem
Holdings Limited

100% by Instem
Holdings Limated

100% by Instem plc

Chmnical

Chnical

Chnicat
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Short leasehold IT Hardware &
Group property Software
£000 £000
Cost
At 1 Jamuary 2013 14 1,650
Additions - 171
Dhsposals - (1
Acqusttions through bus
combmnations - 5
Exchange adjustment - 4
At 31 December 2013 i4 1,821
Additions 60 64
Exchange adjustment - 4
At 31 December 2014 74 1,889
Depreciation
At 1 January 2013 (8) 1,485
Reclassification 12 (12)
Depreciation expense 4 92
Dusposal - ¢}]
Exchange adjustment - 2
At 31 December 2013 8 1,562
Depreciation expense 17 110
1 2
At 31 December 2014 26 1,674
Net Book value
As 31 December 2013 6 259
As 31 December 2014 48 215

Total
£000
1,664

171
(1)

@

1,835
124

1,963

1,477

96
(1
@

1,570

127

1,700

265

263
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12

13

INVENTORIES
2014 2013
£000 £000
Group
Raw matenals 21 17
Work 1n progress 485 290
506 307
2014 2013
£000 £000
Total gross mnventories 506 307
2014 2013
£000 £000
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group
Trade receivables 2,765 1,990
Amounts recoverable on contracts 1,257 425
Prepayments and accrued mcome 470 493
4,432 2,908
2014 2013
£000 £000
Company
Amounts owed by group compames 2,214 1,225
Other recervables 17 18
2,231 1,243

A provision for imparment 1s made where there 15 objective evidence of impairment whach 1s usually
mdicated by a delay 1n the expected cash flows or non-payment from customers

An analysis of the provision for rmpairment of receivables 1s as 2014 2013
follows: £000 £000
Group

At beginning of year - 4

Charge/{credit) for the year 23 (4)
At end of year 23 -
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (contmued)
The average credit penod taken on sale 15 38 days (2013 31 days) No interest 1s charged on overdue
recervables

Before acceptmg any new significant customer, the Group obtams relevant credit references to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality Credit Limits are defimed by customer

The directors constder that the carrying amount of trade and other recervables approximates to therr fair
valuie

The age profile of the net trade receivables for the Group at the year-ead was as follows

Group Debt age

2013 Current  0-30 days 31-60 Over60 Total
days days

Trade receivables/Amounts recoverable

o1 contracts

Value (£000} 1,619 488 94 214 2,415

% 67 20 4 9 100

Group Debt age

2014 Current  0-30 days 31-60 Over 60 Total
days days

Trade receivables/ Amounts recoverable

on contracts

Value (£000) 3,359 470 45 83 3,962

Yo 85 12 1 2 100

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of
recervables mentioned above The Group does not hold any collateral as secunty

An analysis of trade and other recervables by currency 15 as follows

2014 2013

£000 £000
Group
Sterling 1,713 1,083
Euro 341 67
US Dollar 2,162 1,598
Renminh 202 156
Other 14 4

4,432 2,908
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14

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2014 2013
£000 £000
Group 10,674 11,051
Cash at bank (8,998) {8,993)
Bank overdraft
1,676 2,053
2014 2013
£000 £000
Company 97 277
Cash at bank

The Group’s comm:tted overdraft facility has a net Lot of £2,000,000 and a gross limit of £9,000,000
Interest 1s charged on the bank overdraft at 2 75% above base rate The bank overdraft is secured by
fixed and floating charges over certam of the Group’s assets The bank facihity is reviewed 1 Apnil each
year

There 15 a debenture 1n favour of National Westmmnster Bank Plc, dated 13 Apnl 2011, secured over the
assels of the group by way of fixed and floating charges, i respect of the Group’s overdraft facility

An analysig of cash and cash equivalents by currency 15 as follows

2014 2013
£000 £000
Group
Sterhing (367 601
Euro 153 32
US Dollar 1,035 733
Renmunb 842 619
Other 13 18
1,676 2,053
2014 2013
£000 £000
Company
Sterling 97 27

The carrying amount of these assets approximates to theswr fair value -
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15

16

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group

Current

Trade payables

Other taxation and social secunty costs
Accruals

Deferred income

Company

Current

Trade payables

Amounts owed to group compames
Accruals

An analysis of trade and other payables by currency 1s as follows

Group
Sterling
US Dollar
Renmunb:
Other

Company
Sterling

2014
£000

416
203
745
6,811

8,175

2014
£000

16
2,270

2,322

8,175

2014
£000

2,322

2013
£000

525
192
743
5,176

7,236

2013
£000

7,236

2013
£000

1,264

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to fair value

due to therr short maturities

CURRENT TAXATION

The Group current tax payable of £231,000 (2013 £7,000) represents the amount of income taxes

payable in respect of current and prior years

The Company current tax payable of £ml (2013 £120,000) represents the amount of mcome taxes

payable n respect of current and pnior years
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18

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Group and Total Less than Oneto  More than
Company one year two two years
years
£000 £000 £000 £000
2013
Defermred consideration 3,086 1,250 980 856
Total  Less than Oune to More
one year two than two
years years
£000 £000 £000 £000
2014
Deferred consideration 1,881 1,600 281 -
Loan note 303 303 - -
2,184 1,903 281 -

Deferred Consideration

The deferred consideration relates to the acquisitions of Instem Clinical Holdings Lumited and Perceptive
Instruments Limited. The directors believe that the camrymng value of the deferred consideration for
Perceptive Instruments approximates to the far value and that the carrying value of the deferred
consideration for Instem Chmical Holdings Limited has been discounted by an appropnate rate to take
account of the time to matunty

The range of possible deferred consideration payable 1s between ml and £3 Sm with the amount provided
as £1,881,000 as shown above

Loan note
A Loan Note amounting to £298,000 was 1ssued during the year as part of the deferred consideration
payable The 6-month Note accrued mterest at 4% and the total due of £303,000, mcluding interest, was

paid m full o January 2015

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All financial mstruments held by the Group, as detmled n this note, are classified as “Loans and
Receivables” (trade and other receivables, exciuding prepayments, and cash and cash equivalents),
“Fmancial Liabalities Measured at Amortised Cost” (trade and other payables, excluding statutory
liabilities, and financial habilities) and “Fair value through profit and loss™ (other financial habilities
whuch reftect derivative contracts) under IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogmiton and Measurement’

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks including market nsk, credit nsk and
liquidity risk. Market nsk includes interest rate nsk, foreign exchange rate risk and pnice risk. The main
financial nsks managed by the Group, under pohicies approved by the Board, are interest rate nisk,
foreign currency nisk, hiquidity risk and credit nsk.
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18

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group has in place nsk management policies that seek to lirmt the adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Group by using various mstruments and techniques Denvatrve financial mnstruments
are only used to hedge exposures anising 1z respect of underlying business requirements and not for any
speculative purpose

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mternationally and 1s exposed to foreign currency nisk oo transactions denomunated
m a currency other than the functonal currency and on the translation of the statement of financial
position and statement of comprehensive income of foreign operations mto stering The currencies
giving nse to this nsk are primarily US dollars The Group has both cash inflows and outflows 1 this
currency that create a natural hedge

In managmg currency risks the Group aums to reduce the impact of shori-term fluctuations on the
Group’s cash inflows and outflows mn a foreign currency The Group also hedges any matenal foreign
currency transaction exposure Dunng the year the Group entered into a US dollar hedging arrangement
with a fixed forward contract which expired prior to the reporting date

Over the longer term, changes i foreign exchange could have an impact on consohdation of foreign
subsidianes earmngs The assumption 1 2014 was based on a forecast that the US dollar to sterling rate
would be 1 60 A 10% decrease m the value of Sterling against the US dollar would result i an increase
n the Group’s profit before tax by approximately £0 1m

Interest rate risk
The Group operates an mierest rate pohcy designed to mimmise mierest costs and reduce volatdity 1n

reported earnings

The Group’s bank facihty does not allow the US Dollar cash balances to generate mterest therefore the
Group transfers funds from the US dollar account into the sterhng account. Currency swaps have been
utihsed to maximise the mnterest gams whilst mmmimising foreign exchange nisks

As at 31 December 2014 mdications are that the UK bank base interest rate will not matenally daffer
from 0 5% over the next 12 months On the basis of the floating net cash position at 31 December 2014
and assurmng no other changes occur (such as changes in currency exchange rates) and that no further
interest rate management action 1s taken, the stable interest rates wall not have an 1mpact on net interest
tncome/(expense)

2013 Fixed Floating Non- Total
rate rate mterest
bearing
£000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Trade and other recervables - - 2,415 2,415
Cash and cash equmvalents - 2,053 - 2,053
Trade and other payables - - (1,268) (1,263)
Deferred consideration - - (3,086) (3,086)
- 2,053 (1,939) 114
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

2014

Group

Trade and other recervables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Deferred consideration
Loan note

2013

Company

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Deferred consideration

2014

Company

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Deferred considerabon
Loan note

Fixed Floating Non- Total
rate rate interest
bearing
£000 £060 £000 £000
- - 3,962 3,962
- 1,676 - 1,676
- - (1,161) (1,161)
- - (1,881) (1,881)
(303) - - (303)
(303) 1,676 920 (2,293)
Fxed Floating Noan- Total
rate rate mierest
bearmng
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 1,243 1,243
- 277 - 277
- - (1,264) (1,264)
- - (3,086) (3,086)
- 277 (3,107 (2,830)
Fixed Floating Non- Total
rate rate interest
bearing
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 2,231 2,231
- 97 - 97
- - @32 (2,322)
- - (1,881) (1,881)
(303) - - (303)
(303) 97 (1,972) (2,178)

Page 52|

EYR - e = -y




Instem plc
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014

18

19

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

Credit risk
Management aims to mmmuse the risk of credit losses.

The Group’s financial assets are bank balances and cash and trade and other recervables, which represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk 1n relation to financial assets.

The Group’s credit nisk 1s pramanly attributable to its trade recervables and the Group has pelicies n
place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with appropnate
creditworthimess

The amounts presented 1n the statement of financ:al position are net of impairment provisions, estimated
by the Group’s management based on prior expenence and their assessment of the present value of
estimated future cash flows An allowance for impairment 1s made where there 1s an identified loss event
which, based on previous expenence, 1s evidence of a reduction m the recaoverability of the cash flows.

The Group generates extemal revenue from no customers which mdividually amount to more than 10%
of the Group revenue (2013 mil}).

The Group's exposure to losses from defaults on trade recevables s reduced due to contractual terms
which require mstallation, training, annual licensiag and support fees to be invoiced and paid annually in
advance

Note 13 sets out the mmpairment proviston for credit losses on trade recervables and the ageing analysis of
overdue trade receivables There were no impairment losses recogmsed on other financial assets

Liguidity risk
Liquidity nisk 15 the nsk that the Group wall not be able to meet 1ts financial commitiments as they fall
due.

The Group’s objective 15 to ensure that adequate facallities are available through use of bank overdrafts
and finance leases The Group manages hqumdity risk through regular cash flow forecasting and
monitoring of cash flows, management review and regular review of workung capital and costs

The Group regularly momtors its available headroom under its borrowing faciines At 31 December
2014, 1ts £2.0m commtted bank facility was drawn down by £0 4m, with £1 6m avadable (2013 £2 Om
avarlable)

In respect of the Group’s mterest-bearing financial liabilities, the table m note 18 includes details at the
reporting date of the periods 1 whach they mature

DEFERRED TAX

2014 2013
Group £000 £000
Deferred tax assets
Amounts due to be recovered wathan 12 months - -
Amounts due to be recovered after 12 months 574 388
Total deferred tax 574 388
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19  DEFERRED TAX (continned)

The movement in the period mn the Group’s net deferred tax asset position was as follows

2014 2013

£°000 £°000 £000 £7000
At beginning of the year 388 732
Charge to mcome for the year 83 (75)
Actuanal losses 124 30
Tax losses (124) 158
Accelerated tax depreciation - {446)
Net credit/(charge) 1o equty - (258)
Adjustments 1n respect of pnor years 103 (in
At end of the year 574 388

The movements on deferred taxation for the year ended 31 December 2013 mcludes balances which

arose from acquisitions made 1n that penod.

The following are the major deferred tax assets and lLabiliies recogmised by the Group ard the

movements thereon dunng the year

Deferred tax asset/(habiliuty) Accelerated Tax losses  Retirement Other Total
tax benefit tming
depreciation obligations  differences
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2013 (358) 345 735 10 732
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss for 127 (143) {64) 5 (75)
the year
(Charge)/credit to equuty for the year (446) 158 30 - (258)
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years )] - - 2) (1)
At 31 December 2013 (686) 360 701 13 388
Credat/{charge) to profit or loss for
the year 58 76 (%} 2 33
{Charge)/credit to equity for the year - (124} 124 - -
Adjustments m respect of prior years (73) 172 4 - 103
At 31 December 2014 (701) 484 776 15 574

Management have recognised deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses based on forecast profitabihity of

the Group companies concerned

Unrecognised tax losses not included at 31 December 2014 were £4,808,000 (2013 £4,883,000) due to

uncertainty over the tummng of the recoverability of these losses
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT CBLIGATIONS

The Group has four active defined contnbution schemes and a closed defined benefit scheme

Defined contribution pension schemes

Group Personal Pension Plan - the scheme was created on 31 December 2008 The Scheme 15 a
contributory money purchase scheme with the employer matching employee contributions to a maximum
of 5% The employer also contributes to the Scheme for former members of Instem LSS Pension
Scheme at rates varying from 5% to 18% Employer contributions for the year ended 31 December 2014
were £0 47m (2013: £0 40m)

Contracted In Money Purchase Scheme (CIMP) - the Scheme was created on 31 December 2008 The
Scheme 15 a non-contributory scheme created for former members of the Instem LSS Pension Scheme
who are US residents Employer contributtons for the year ended 31 December 2014 were £0 03m
(2013 £0 03m) -

Instem LSS (Norih America} Limited 401k Plan - the scheme was created for the benefit of employees of
Instem LSS (North Amenca) Limnted in the USA. The Scheme 1s a contributory money purchase
scheme with the employer matching contributions to the scheme to a maxmmum of 4 8% Employer
contributions for the year ended 31 December 2014 were £0 07m (2013 £0.09m)

BioWisdom GPP Scheme - the Scheme 1s a Group Personal Pension arrangement with Wmnterthur Life
(now part of Friends Life) and was set up m 2001 Employee members must contribute at least 3% of
basic salary and the employer contributes up to a maximum of 6% Employer contributions for the year
ended 31 December 2014 were £0 02m (2013. £0 03m)

Perceptive Instruments Limited - The Group makes contnbutions to personal pension arrangements of
certam employees Durmg the year ended 31 December 2014 employer contributions to these
arrangements totalled £0 02m (2013 £ml}

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group also operates a pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable pay This
scheme was closed to new members with effect from 8 October 2001 and the rate of fiture benefit
accrual reduced from 1/60™ of final pensionable pay per year of service to 1/80® wath effect from 6 April
2003 The scheme closed to future accrual on 31 December 2008

The Scheme 15 subject to the Statutory Funding Objective under the Pensions Act 2004 A valuation of
the Scheme 15 carned out at least once every three years to determmne whether the Statutory Fundmg
Objective 1s met As part of the process, the Group must agree with the Trustees of the Scheme the
contributions to be paid to address any shortfall against the Statutory Funding The Statutory Funding
Objective does not currently impact on the recogmition of the Scheme in the accounts The scheme 1s 1n
deficit and no contributions payable under a mumnmum funding requirement are considered potentally
refundable or utlisable as a reduction of future contributions IFRIC mterpretation 14 is deemed to be
not apphcable to the Group

The Scheme 18 managed by a Board of Trustees appomted in part by the Group and part from elections
by members of the Scheme The Trustees have responsibility for obtaming valuations of the Scheme,
admimstenng benefit payments and investing the Scheme assets The Trustees delegate some of these
functions to their professional advisers where appropnate
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (contmued)
The Scheme exposes the Group to a number of nsks

s  Investment nsk. The Scheme holds mvestments in asset classes, such as equties, which have
volatile market values and while these assets are expected to provide the real returns over the long-
term the short-term volatility can cause additional funding to be required if deficit emerges

» Interest rate nsk. The Scheme’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on lugh quality
corporate bands to discount the habilities As the Scheme holds assets such as equities the value of
the assets and habilities may not move m the same way

¢ Inflanon nsk. A sigmficant proportion of the benefits under the Scheme are lnked to nflation.
Although the Scheme’s assets are expected to provide a good hedge against inflation over the long-
term, movements over the short-term could lead to deficits emerging

e  Mortality risk. In the event that members hive longer than assumed a defictt will emerge 1n the
Scheme

There were no plan amendments, curtailments or settlements durmg the peniod.

The latest full actuanal valuation was carried out at 5 April 2011 and was updated to 31 December 2014
by a qualified mdependent actuary

The following schedule of contnbutions was prepared by the Trustees of the Instem LSS Pension
Scheme (‘the Scheme’) after obtaiming the advice of the Scheme Actary appomted by the Trustees and
was intended to clear the deficit in the Scheme at the time 1t was agreed n July 2012

Penod ended Monthly payment (payable in | Balancing payment due before
each month except the finat | penod end £7000
month 1n each pencd) £000

31 March 2015 15 247

31 March 2016 15 262

31 March 2017 15 277

31 March 2018 15 292

31 March 2019 15 308

31 March 2020 15 325

15 October 2020 15 206

The employer pays the Pension Protection Fund levy each year n respect of the scheme It 15 intended
that all other expenses associated with the rannmg of the Scheme will be met from the Scheme’s assets

Changes made to IAS19 that came 1nto force for accounting periods on or after 1 January 2013 were as
follows

e  The “finance cost” whick was previously the dufference between the nterest on liabihities and
expected return on assets 1s replaced by a “net interest cost” This means that the expected retumn
on assets 15 effectively based on the discount rate with no allowance made for any outperformance
expecied from the Scheme’s asset holding.

s  Actual admmstration expenses are required to be included m the Statement of Fiancial Positton.

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlymng the current investment portfolio Expected yelds on bonds are based on gross
redemption yields at the reporting date whilst the expected retums on the equity and property investments
reflect the long-term real rates of return expenenced m the respective markets
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS {continued)

2014 2013
Yo %
Discount rate 33 46
Inflation 3.1 35
Rate of mncrease n salanes N/A N/A
Rate of increase in pensions 1n payment 2.8 35
Rate of increase 1n pensions in deferment 3.1 35
Life Expectancy assumption (number of Years Years
years from the age of 65)
Male currently aged 45 24.7 250
Female currently aged 45 25.8 263
Male currently aged 65 234 237
Female currently aged 65 243 248
ANALYSIS OF AMOUNT CHARGED TO 2014 2013
OPERATING EXPENSES £000 £000
Current service cost - -
Past service cost - -
Total operating charge - -
ANALYSIS OF AMOUNT CHARGED TO 2014 2013
FINANCE COSTS £000 £000
Interest on pension scheme assets 327 273
Interest on pension scheme habilites 479 {408)
Net finance charge (152) {135)

w—— ey
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

ANALYSIS OF AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN OTHER 2014 2013
COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE £000 £000
Losses/(Garmns) on pension scheme assets 1n excess of 7 (612)
interest
Expenence losses arising on scheme liabilities 138 -
(Gains)/losses from changes to demographic assumptions (163) 279
Losses from changes to financial assumptions 639 920
Actuartal loss recogmsed 1 other comprehensive expense 621 587
CHANGES IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF THE 2014 2013
DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION £000 £000
Opening defined benefit obhgation 10,529 9,200
Interest cost 479 408
Benefits paid 217 (278)
Experience loss on defined benefit obligation 138 -
Changes to demographic assumptions (163) 279
Changes to financial assumptions 639 920
Closing defined benefit obhgation 11,405 10,529
CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS

2014 2013

£000 £000
Opening plan assets 7,023 6,004
Expected return 327 273
Return on plan assets less interest ¥ 612
Contributions by employer 398 412
Benefits pard (217) (278)
Closing plan assets 7,524 7,023

The actual return on plan assets was a positive return of £320,000 (2013 £885,000)
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20  RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTTION

Present value of funded obligauons
Fair vatue of plan assets

Deficit
Related deferred tax asset

Net pension lrabihty

RECONCILIATION OF NET DEFINED BENEFIT
LIABILITY

Opemng net defined benefit Lability
Net mnterest expense
Remeasurements

Contributions by employer

Closing net defined benefit habihity

ANALYSIS OF CUMULATIVE AMOUNT
RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
EXPENSE

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets
Expenence gans and losses ansmg on scheme habilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
scheme habilities

Cumnlative actuanal loss recogmsed 1n other
comprehensive expense

2014 2013
£000 £000
(11,405) (10,529)
7,524 7,023
3,881) (3,506)
776 701
(3,105) (2,805)
2014 2013
£000 £000
3,506 3,196
152 135
621 587
{398) (412)
3,381 3,506
Cuamulative  Cumulative
2014 2013
£000 £000
246 253
(1,811) {1,673)
(2,239) (1,763)
(3,804) (3,183)
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20  RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS {continued)

MAJOR CATEGORIES OF PLAN ASSETS AS A PERCENTAGE OF FAIR VALUE OF TOTAL

PLAN ASSETS
2014 2013
£000 % £000 %
Equities 5,376 72 4,986 71
Property 185 2 211 3
Bonds 680 9 632 9
Corporate Bonds 682 9 632 9
Cash 516 7 492 7
Other 85 1 70 1
7,524 100 7,023 100

The five year history of expenence adjustments 1s as follows

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit (11,405) (10,529) {9,200) (6,946) (6,956)
obhigation
Fair value of plan assets 7,524 7,023 6,004 5,330 5479
Deficit (3,881) (3,506) (3,196) (1,616) (1,477)
Experience adjustments on plan (138) - (763) - €2))
habilities
Expenence adjustments on plan assets ()] 612 172 (480) 235
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20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (contnued)

The Group expects to contribute £0 4m to 1ts defined benefit plans in the next financaal year (2013
£0 4m)

The following sensitivities apply to the value placed on the liabilities

Adjustments to assumptions Approximate effect on
Liabilities

£000

Discount rate

Plus 0 50% pa (1,039)

Minus 0 50% 1,192

Inflation

Plus 0 50% 416

Muwus 0 50% (380)

Life Expectancy

Plus 1 year 315

Minus 1 year (321)

Pension increases

Plus 0 50% pa 580

Minus 0 50% (321

21  SHARE CAPITAL

2014 2013
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully pard
At 1 January
11,764,658 ordinary shares of 10p each (2013 11,764,658) 1,176 1,176
447 602 (2013 Nil) ordinary shares of 10p each, 1ssued 45 -
duning the year
At 31 December 1,221 1,176

447,602 shares were 1ssued 1n 2014 as part settiement of the deferred consideration payable relating to
the acquisition of Instem Chimacal Holdings Limited
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22 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and fully diluted

Basic eamumgs per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by the

weighted average number of ordmary shares 1n 1ssue during the year Dhluted earnings per share 1s

calculated by adjustng the weighted number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all

dilutive potential shares ansing from the share option scheme The dilutive mpact of the share options 1s
calculated by determining the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determuined as
the average market share price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription
nights attached to the outstandimng share options

Earnings per
share — Basic
Potentially
dilutive shares

Earnings per share
- Daluted

Adjusted

Adjusted earmings per share 1s calculated after adjusting for the effect of foreign currency exchange on the
revaluation of inter-company balances wncluded n finance mcome/{costs), non-recurnng items and
amortisation of intangibles on acquisibons Diluted adjusted earnmgs per share 1s calculated by adjusting
the weighted number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potenhal shares
The dilutive impact of the share options 1s calculated by
determmning the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
market share prnice of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the subscniption nghts

ansing from the share option scheme

2014 2013
Profit Weighted Earnings Profit Weighted Earmings per
after tax average pershare  after tax average share
number of number of
shares shares
£000 ‘000 Pence £000 ‘000 Pence
150 12,063 1.2 520 11,765 45
- 155 - - 15 -
150 12,218 12 529 11,780 45

attached to the outstanding share options

Earmings per
share — Basic
Potentially
dilutive shares

Earnings per share
- Dnluted

2014 2013
Adjusted Weighted Earnings Adjusted Weighted Earnings per
Profit average per share Profit average share
after tax number of affer tax number of
shares shares
£000 ‘000 Pence £000 ‘000 Pence
1,009 12,063 8.4 1,017 11,765 86
- 155 - - i5 -
1,009 12,218 83 1,017 11,780 86
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23

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Reconciliahon of adjusted profit after tax 2014 2013
£°000 £000
Reported profit after tax 150 529
Non-recurnng costs/(1ncome) 123 200
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 640 394
Foreign exchange differences on revaluation of inter-company balances 96 (84)
Sundry income - (22)
1,009 1,017
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capual

The share capital account mncludes the par value for all shares 1ssued and outstanding

Share premuum account
The share premuum account 18 used to record amounts recerved m excess of the nominal value of shares

on 1ssue of new shares less the costs of new share 1ssues

Transiation reserve
The translanon reserve incorporates the cumulative net exchange gamns and losses recognised on the
translation of subsidiary company financial information to the presentational currency of Sterling (£)

Retatned earmings

The retamned earnings reserve mcludes the accumulated profits and losses arismg from the consolidated
‘Statement of Comprehensive Income’ and certan items from ‘Other Comprehensive Income’
attributable to equuty shareholders net of distributions to shareholders

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between the consideration payable at the date of acquisition,
net of merger relief, and the share capital and share premium of Instem Life Science Systems Limuted.

Shares to be issued
The shares to be 1ssued reserve represents the shares to be 1ssued under the share option scheme and
shares contingently 1ssuable on acquisitions
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23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

24

25

Capital management
The Group’s main objective when managing capital 15 to protect returns to shareholders by ensuring the
Group will continue to trade profitably in the foreseeable future The Group also aims to maxumise the

capital structure of debt and equty so as to minimuse 1ts cost of capital

The Group manages 1ts capital with regard to the nsks inherent m the busmess and the sector within
which 1t operates by monitonng its gearing ratio on a regular basis

The Group considers its capital to include share capital, share premjum, translation reserve, retamed
earmings and net debt as noted below.

Net debt includes short and long-term borrowmgs (including overdrafts, redeemable preference shares
and lease obhgations) net of cash and cash equivalents

The Group has not made any changes to 1ts capital management during the year

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There were no capital commutments at the end of the financial year (2013 £nil)

OPERATING LEASES PAYABLE 2014 2013
£000 £000
Mimmum lease payments under operating leases
recogmsed as an expense 1n the year 256 380
At the reporting date, the Group has outstanding comnutments under 2014 2013
operating leases, which fall due as follows £000 £000
Land and buildings
Within one year 394 295
In the second to fifih year mmclusive 1,000 868
After five years 498 604
Plant and machinery
Within one year 3 4
In the second to fifth year inclusive 5 8
1,900 1,779

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for property leases and certamn
equipment. Leases have varying terms and renewal nghts. The above leasing arrangements do not
contain any restrictive covenants, contingent rents or purchase options

The operating lease in relation to the head office bulldings contams a dilapidation clause whereby Instem
plc must make good any damage to the demised premises on exprration of the lease 1n November 2023
The Directors estimate that the current liabihity is not material to warrant provision at the penod end

No operating leascs are held by the Company
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26

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between Group companies have not been disclosed as these have all been elirnmated 1n the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements Dunng the year the Company traded with
subsidiary compames m its normal course of busmess These transactions related to recharges and
totalled mn aggregate £0 51m (2013 £0 73m) The net intercompany balances due from the Company at
the year-end totalled £0.01m (2013 due to £0 (02m)

Duning the year the Group traded 1n its normal course of business with shareholders and consultancy
businesses n which Directors have a matenial interest as follows

2014 2013
Key management compensation £0600 £000
Fees for services provided as Non-Executive Directors
Salanes and short term benefits 63 86
Post employment retirement benefits - -
Employers’ national insurance & social secunty costs 7 9
Share based payment charge
75 95

Executive Directors
Salarnes and short term benefits 269 267
Post employment retirement benefits 35 37
Employers’ national insurance & social secunty costs 20 20
Share based payment charge 12 38

336 362
Other key management
Salanes and short term employee benefits 461 414
Post employment retirement benefits 26 25
Employers’ national nsurance & socal security costs 44 38
Share based payment charge 8 36

539 513

The Company paid £0 05m (2013 £0 05m) to Instem Ventures Linuted, a company owned by A Gare, a
shareholder The balance outstandmmg at the end of the year was £ml (2013 £ml).

In addstion the Company paid £0.02m (2013 £0 01m) to Noble Adamson Linuted, a company owned by
M McGoun, the 1ndependent non-executive director and a shareholder. The balance outstanding at the
end of the year was £0 002m (2013 £ml)

Key management are considered to be the Directors together with the Semor Managers of the business

L
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27

28

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Some asset and habihity amounts reported m the financial information are based on management
estimates and assumptions There 1s therefore a nsk of sigmficant changes to the carrying amounts for
these assets and habihities wathin the next financial year The estimates and assumptions are made on the
basis of information and conditions that exist at the time of the valuation.

Fair value of assets acquired and calculation of contingent consideration

The amounts presented n the statement of financial position mn respect of the farr values of assets
acquired are estimated by the Group’s management based on prior expenence and their assessment of the
present value of estimated future cash flows The key assumptions made 1n assessing fair values are n
relation to wntangible assets acquured, and these relate principally to the royalty rate applied to mteilectual
property rights (IPR), and the assessment of future revenues

The contingent consideration provided m the financial statements 1s measured mitially at 1ts acqusition-
date fair value and subsequently carmed at its amortised cost.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of goodwill and mvestments The
recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated 1 order to determme the extent of the impauwment loss (if
any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating umt to which the asset belongs A key factor
which could result in an impairment of goodwll or mvestments 1s lower than predicted revenue
Sensitivitres around this factor and the discount rate are set out 1n note 9

Other intangible assets — useful lives
Other intangible assets are amortised over their useful life, which has been eshmated by management to

be up to 8 years
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Instem plc has provided a guarantee to its subsidiaries which have taken advantage of the exemption
from audit. Under this guarantee, the company has a contingent liabihty of £9 Om (2013 £9 Om)
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